
NOTICE: Persons with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting should 
contact the City Clerk at (248) 524-3316 or via e-mail at clerk@troymi.gov at least two working days in 
advance of the meeting. An attempt will be made to make reasonable accommodations. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

TROY CITY COUNCIL 
 
 

REGULAR MEETING 
AGENDA 

 
 
 

OCTOBER 24, 2016 
CONVENING AT 7:30 P.M. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Submitted By 
The City Manager 
 
 
 

mailto:clerk@troymi.gov




 

 
 
 
 
The Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 
 
City of Troy 
500 West Big Beaver  
Troy, MI 48084 
 
 
Dear Mayor and City Council Members: 
 
In this packet, you will find the agenda for the City Council meeting. To help facilitate an informed 
discussion, the packet provides you with agenda items and additional details. The packet also 
contains recommended courses of action for your consideration and seeks to aid you in adopting 
sound policy decisions for the City of Troy. 
 
This comprehensive agenda has been put together through the collaborative efforts of 
management and staff members. We have made all attempts to obtain accurate supporting 
information. It is the result of many meetings and much deliberation, and I would like to thank 
the staff for their efforts. 
 
If you need any further information, staff is always available to provide more information and 
answer questions that may arise. You can contact me at bkischnick@troymi.gov or 
989.233.7335 with questions. 
 
Respectfully, 
 
 
 
 
Brian Kischnick,  
City Manager 
 



 
  

 



 

 

 

 

CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA 

October 24, 2016 – 7:30 PM 
Council Chambers 

City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 
Troy, Michigan 48084 

(248) 524-3317 

INVOCATION:  Pastor Weatherly Verhelst from First United Methodist Church 1 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 1 

A. CALL TO ORDER: 1 

B. ROLL CALL: 1 

C. CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION AND SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS: 1 

C-1 Proclamation for America Recycles Day Presented to Pam Brady, South Oakland 
County Resource Recovery (Introduced by: Cindy Stewart, Community Affairs 
Director) (Presented by:  Mayor Dane Slater) 1 

C-2 Diwali Celebration Proclamation Presented to Padma Kuppa, Board Member of 
Michigan Chapter of the Hindu American Foundation and Members of the 
Bharatiya Temple (Presented by:  Mayor Dane Slater) 1 

C-3 Proclamation Honoring Cindy Stewart for Being Named One of the 2016 
Esteemed Women of Michigan (Presented by:  Mayor Dane Slater) 1 

D. CARRYOVER ITEMS: 1 

D-1 No Carryover Items 1 

E. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 2 

E-1 Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment File No. ZOTA 249 – Enhanced Cluster 
Option 2 



 

F. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS ON THE AGENDA FROM TROY RESIDENTS 
AND BUSINESSES: 2 

G. CITY COUNCIL/CITY ADMINISTRATION RESPONSE/REPLY TO PUBLIC 
COMMENT: 3 

H. POSTPONED ITEMS: 3 

H-1 No Postponed Items 3 

I. REGULAR BUSINESS: 3 

I-1 Board and Committee Appointments: a) Mayoral Appointments – None; b) City 
Council Appointments – Animal Control Appeal Board, Parks and Recreation 
Board 3 

I-2 Board and Committee Nominations: a) Mayoral Nominations – Global Troy 
Advisory Committee, Local Development Finance Authority, Volunteer Firefighter 
Incentive Plan Board; b) City Council Nominations – Charter Revision Committee, 
Historic District Commission, Liquor Advisory Committee, Parks & Recreation 
Board, Traffic Committee 4 

I-3 No Closed Session Requested 11 

I-4 Big Beaver Trolley Proposal (Introduced by: Mayor Dane Slater) (Presented by: 
Robert Cramer, SMART) 11 

I-5 Standard Purchasing Resolution 8:  Best Value Award – Emergency Medical and 
First Responder Services (Introduced by:  Fire Chief Dave Roberts and 
Purchasing Manager MaryBeth Murz) 12 

J. CONSENT AGENDA: 12 

J-1a Approval of “J” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 12 

J-1b  Address of “J” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council 12 

J-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 12 

a) Special Joint City Council and Troy School Board Minutes-Draft – October 10, 
2016 ................................................................................................................... 13 

b) City Council Minutes-Draft – October 10, 2016 .................................................. 13 



 

J-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations: 13 

a) America Recycles Day 2016............................................................................... 13 
b) Celebration of Diwali – The Festival of Lights – October 30, 2016 ..................... 13 
c) Cindy Stewart – Esteemed Women of Michigan 2016 Honoree ......................... 13 

J-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions: 13 

a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2:  Low Bidders Meeting Specifications – 
Snow Removal Services ..................................................................................... 13 

J-5 Request for Recognition as a Nonprofit Organization from Myasthenia Gravis 
Association, Inc. 13 

J-6 Former I-75 – Rochester Mobil Gas Station, 2745 Rochester Road Proposal to 
Complete Analytical Testing and Final Assessment/Closure Report 14 

K. MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 14 

K-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:  None Submitted 14 

K-2 Memorandums (Items submitted to City Council that may require consideration at  
some future point in time): 14 

a) Amendment to City Ordinance Chapter 7 Item 9 “Declared Emergency” ........... 14 

L. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA FROM TROY 
RESIDENTS AND BUSINESSES: 14 

M. CITY COUNCIL/CITY ADMINISTRATION RESPONSE/REPLY TO PUBLIC 
COMMENT: 14 

N. COUNCIL REFERRALS: 14 

N-1  No Council Referrals Submitted 14 

O. COUNCIL COMMENTS: 14 

O-1  No Council Comments Advanced 14 

P. REPORTS: 14 

P-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees: 14 



 

a) Planning Commission-Draft – September 27, 2016 ............................................ 14 
b) Planning Commission-Final – September 27, 2016 ............................................ 14 
c) Building Code Board of Appeals-Draft – October 5, 2016 .................................. 14 

P-2 Department Reports: 14 

a) Staff Response to Safety Concern ..................................................................... 14 

P-3 Letters of Appreciation: 15 

a) To Chief Mayer from Wendy Dingwall Regarding Troy High Cross Country 
Team Morning Practice ...................................................................................... 15 

b) To Chief Mayer from Unknown Resident Regarding Officer Assistance ............. 15 
c) To Chief Roberts from Bruce Benson Regarding Eagles vs Troy Fire 

Department Event ............................................................................................... 15 
d) To Brian Kischnick from Mayor Slater Regarding Eleanor Yoon’s Outstanding 

Work on the Global Troy Advisory Committee .................................................... 15 
e) To Chief Roberts from Nancy Butty Regarding Participation in the Apparatus 

Display for the Fire and Life Safety Program ...................................................... 15 
f) To Steve Vandette from Mark and Mary MacKinnon Regarding the Excellent 

Service Received from Guy Kitchen ................................................................... 15 

P-4 Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:  None Submitted 15 

P-5 Notice of Hearing for the Natural Gas Customers of Consumers Energy Co. Case 
No. U-18166 – Saginaw Trail Pipeline 15 

Q. COMMENTS ON ITEMS ON OR NOT ON THE AGENDA FROM MEMBERS OF 
THE PUBLIC OUTSIDE OF TROY (NOT RESIDENTS OF TROY AND NOT FROM 
TROY BUSINESSES): 15 

R. CLOSED SESSION: 15 

R-1 No Closed Session 15 

S. ADJOURNMENT: 15 

2016 SCHEDULED SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS 16 

October 25, 2016 Joint Study City Council/Troy Downtown Development Authority . 16 
November 14, 2016 Joint Study City Council/Troy Family Daze Committee ................. 16 

2016 SCHEDULED REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 16 

November 14, 2016 Regular Meeting .................................................................... 16 
November 21, 2016 Regular Meeting .................................................................... 16 
December 5, 2016 Regular Meeting ...................................................................... 16 
December 19, 2016 Regular Meeting .................................................................... 16 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA October 24, 2016 
 

- 1 - 

INVOCATION:  Pastor Weatherly Verhelst from First United Methodist Church 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  
 
A. CALL TO ORDER: 
 
B. ROLL CALL: 
 

a) Mayor Dane Slater 
Edna Abrahim 
Ethan Baker 
Dave Henderson 
Ellen Hodorek  
Paul McCown 
Mayor Pro Tem Ed Pennington  

 
b) Excuse Absent Council Members: 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2016-10-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby EXCUSES the absence of ______________ at the 
Joint Special City Council and Planning Commission Meeting and the Regular City Council 
Meeting of October 24, 2016, due to ______________. 
 
Yes:       
No:       
 

C. CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION AND SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS:  
C-1 Proclamation for America Recycles Day Presented to Pam Brady, South Oakland 

County Resource Recovery (Introduced by: Cindy Stewart, Community Affairs 
Director) (Presented by:  Mayor Dane Slater) 

 
C-2 Diwali Celebration Proclamation Presented to Padma Kuppa, Board Member of 

Michigan Chapter of the Hindu American Foundation and Members of the Bharatiya 
Temple (Presented by:  Mayor Dane Slater) 

 
C-3 Proclamation Honoring Cindy Stewart for Being Named One of the 2016 Esteemed 

Women of Michigan (Presented by:  Mayor Dane Slater) 
 

D. CARRYOVER ITEMS: 
D-1 No Carryover Items 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA October 24, 2016 
 

- 2 - 

E. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
E-1 Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment File No. ZOTA 249 – Enhanced Cluster Option 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2016-10-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the amendment to Article 10 of 
Chapter 39 of the Code of the City of Troy, which includes miscellaneous provisions related to 
cluster development in one-family residential zoning districts, to read as written in the proposed 
Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (ZOTA 249), City Council Public Hearing Draft, as 
recommended by the Planning Commission. 
 
Yes:       
No:       
 

F. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS ON THE AGENDA FROM TROY 
RESIDENTS AND BUSINESSES: 

 
In accordance with the Rules of Procedure for the City Council, Article 17 – Members of 
the Public and Visitors: 
Any person not a member of the City Council may address the Council with recognition of the 
Chair, after clearly stating the nature of his/her inquiry or comment. City Council requests that if 
you do have a question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you are 
encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved satisfactorily, to 
the Mayor and Council. 
• Petitioners shall be given a fifteen (15) minute presentation time that may be extended with 

the majority consent of City Council. 
• Any member of the public, not a petitioner of an item, shall be allowed to speak for up to three 

(3) minutes to address any Public Hearing item. 
• Any Troy resident or Troy business representative, not a petitioner of an item, shall be allowed 

to speak for up to three (3) minutes total to address Postponed, Regular Business, Consent 
Agenda or Study items or any other item on the Agenda as permitted under the Open 
Meetings Act during the Public Comment for Items On the Agenda from Troy Residents and 
Businesses portion of the Agenda. 

• Any Troy resident or Troy business representative, not a petitioner of an item, shall be allowed 
to speak for up to three (3) minutes to address any topic not on the Agenda as permitted 
under the Open Meetings Act during the Public Comment for Items Not on the Agenda from 
Troy Residents and Businesses portion of the Agenda. 

• Any member of the public who is not a Troy resident or Troy business representative shall be 
allowed to speak for up to three (3) minutes to address any topic on or not on the Agenda as 
permitted under the Open Meetings Act during the Comments for Items On or Not On the 
Agenda from Members of the Public Outside of Troy (Not Residents of Troy and Not From 
Troy Businesses) portion of the Agenda. 

• All members of the public who wish to address the Council at a meeting shall be allowed to 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA October 24, 2016 
 

- 3 - 

speak only if they have signed up to speak within thirty minutes before or within fifteen 
minutes after the meeting’s start time. Signing up to speak requires each speaker provide his 
or her name and residency status (Troy resident, non-resident, or Troy business owner). If the 
speaker is addressing an Item (or Items) that appear on the pre-printed agenda, then the 
speaker shall also identify each such agenda item number(s) to be addressed. 

• City Council may waive the requirements of this section by a majority vote of the City Council 
members. 

• Agenda items that are related to topics where there is significant public input anticipated 
should initiate the scheduling of a Special meeting for that specific purpose. 

 
The following has been approved by Troy City Council as a statement of the rules of decorum 
for City Council meetings. The Mayor will also provide a verbal notification of these rules prior to 
Public Comment: 
 
The audience should be aware that all comments are to be directed to the Council rather than 
to City Administration or the audience. Anyone who wishes to address the Council is required to 
sign up to speak within thirty minutes before or within fifteen minutes of the start of the meeting. 
There are three Public Comment portions of the Agenda. For Items On the Agenda, Troy 
Residents and Business Owners can sign up to address Postponed, Regular Business, 
Consent Agenda, or Study items or any other item on the Agenda. Troy Residents and 
Business Owners can sign up to address all other topics under Items Not on the Agenda.  All 
Speakers who do not live in Troy or own a Troy business may sign up to speak during the 
Comments on Items On and Not On the Agenda from Members of the Public Outside of Troy. 
Also, there is a timer on the City Council table in front of the Mayor that turns yellow when there 
is one minute of speaker time remaining, and turns red when the speaker's time is up.    
In order to make the meeting more orderly and out of respect, please do not clap during the 
meeting, and please do not use expletives or make derogatory or disparaging comments about 
any one person or group.  If you do so, then there may be immediate consequences, including 
having the microphone turned off, being asked to leave the meeting, and/or the deletion of 
speaker comments for any re-broadcast of the meeting.  Speakers should also be careful to 
avoid saying anything that would subject them to civil liability, such as slander and defamation.  
 
Please avoid these consequences and voluntarily assist us in maintaining the decorum befitting 
this great City. 
 
G. CITY COUNCIL/CITY ADMINISTRATION RESPONSE/REPLY TO PUBLIC 

COMMENT: 
 

H. POSTPONED ITEMS: 

H-1 No Postponed Items  
 

I. REGULAR BUSINESS: 
I-1 Board and Committee Appointments: a) Mayoral Appointments – None; b) City 

Council Appointments – Animal Control Appeal Board, Parks and Recreation Board 
 
a) Mayoral Appointments:  None 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA October 24, 2016 
 

- 4 - 

 
b) City Council Appointments:   
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2016-10-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPOINTS the following nominated person(s) to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 

Animal Control Appeal Board 
Appointed by Council 
5 Regular Members 

3 Year Term 
 

 
Term Expires:  9/30/2019 Patrick Carolan 
 Term currently held by: Patrick Carolan 

 
 
 

Parks and Recreation Board 
Appointed by Council 

7 Regular Members and 1 Troy School District Member 
Regular Member: 3 Year Term  /  Troy School Board Member: 1 Year Term 

 
 
Term Expires:  9/30/2019 Julia (Judy) Baker 
 Term currently held by: Julia (Judy) Baker 
 
Term Expires:  9/30/2019 Jeffrey L. Stewart 
 Term currently held by: Jeffrey L. Stewart 
 
Term Expires:  9/30/2019 Steve Toth 
 Term currently held by: Steve Toth 
 

Yes:       
No:       
 
I-2 Board and Committee Nominations: a) Mayoral Nominations – Global Troy Advisory 

Committee, Local Development Finance Authority, Volunteer Firefighter Incentive 
Plan Board; b) City Council Nominations – Charter Revision Committee, Historic 
District Commission, Liquor Advisory Committee, Parks & Recreation Board, Traffic 
Committee 

 
a) Mayoral Nominations:   
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA October 24, 2016 
 

- 5 - 

Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2016-10-      
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the Mayor of the City of Troy hereby FORWARDS the following nominated 
person(s) to serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated to the next Regular City Council 
Meeting for action: 
 

Global Troy Advisory Committee 
Appointed by Mayor 
11 Regular Members 

3 Year Term 
 

Current Members: 

Last Name First Name App Resume Expire Appointment 
Expire Notes 1 

Bagri Samir 5/10/2018 10/30/2018  
Balaraman Venkatesan 5/11/2018 10/30/2017  
Bica-Grodsky Lisa 6/23/2018 10/30/2017  
Burrus MiVida 7/15/2018 10/30/2019  
Chamberlain-Creanga Rebecca 5/23/2018 10/30/2017  
Coon Richard 4/22/2018 10/30/2019  
Fakhoury Awni 4/28/2018 10/30/2018  
Mohideen Syeda 4/22/2018 10/30/2018  
Natcheva Daniela 6/24/2018 10/30/2019  
Samman Rouba 4/8/2018 10/30/2019  
Slater Dane   Mayor Appt. 
Young Ricky 4/22/2018 7/31/2017 STUDENT 

 

 
Nominations to the Global Troy Advisory Committee: 
 
Term Expires: 10/30/2019   
 
Term Expires: 7/31/2017  STUDENT 
 
Interested Applicants: 
Last Name First Name App Resume Expire Notes 1 
Angamuthu Rahul 4/21/2018 STUDENT 
Aowad Ayman 8/22/2018  
Buchanan Cynthia 4/20/2018  
Chan Tai 4/18/2018  



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA October 24, 2016 
 

- 6 - 

O’Brien Christine 7/18/2018  
Razzacki Syed 9/9/2018  
Schneeweis Adina 5/6/2018  
Sekhri Suneel 6/15/2018  

 

 
 
 

Local Development Finance Authority (LDFA) 
Appointed by Mayor 
5 Regular Members 

Staggered 4 Year Term 
 
Current Members: 
Last 
Name 

First 
Name 

App Res 
Expire 

Appointment 
Expire Notes 1 Notes 2 

Beltramini Robin 4/4/2016 6/30/2018 Resident 
Member  

Hodorek Ellen  11/13/2017  City Council exp 11/13/2017 

Hoef Paul V. 5/1/2017 6/30/2019 Resident 
Member EDC exp 4/30/2015 

Sharp John 3/28/2018 6/30/2020 Resident 
Member EDC exp 4/30/2015 

Shields David 6/14/2014 6/30/2016 Member NO Reappointment 
Slater Dane M.  11/11/2019 Alternate DDA 
Spanos Irene    Oakland County 

Vitale Nickolas 4/27/2017 6/30/2019 Resident 
Member  

 

 
Nominations to the Local Development Finance Authority (LDFA): 
 
Term Expires:  6/30/2020  Member 
 Term currently held by: David Shields 
 
Interested Applicants: 
Last Name First Name App Resume Expire Notes 1 
Schick Michael 1/13/2017  

 

 
 
 

Volunteer Firefighter Incentive Plan Board 
Appointed by Mayor 
7 Regular Members 

3 Year Term 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA October 24, 2016 
 

- 7 - 

 
Current Members: 
Last Name First Name Appointment Expire Notes 1 
Darling Tom  Ex-Officio Member 
Henderson Dave  Council Member 
Kischnick Brian  Ex-Officio Member 

 

 
Nominations to the Volunteer Firefighter Incentive Plan Board: 
 
Term Expires:  4/30/2019  Citizen (Mayor Appt’d) 
 
Last Name First Name App Resume Expire Notes 1 
Matlick Robert 5/27/2018  
Mohideen Syeda 4/22/2018  

 

 
Yes:  
No:  
 
b) City Council Nominations:  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2016-10-      
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby FORWARDS the following nominated person(s) to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated to the next Regular City Council Meeting for 
action: 
 

Charter Revision Committee 
Appointed by Council 
7 Regular Members 

3 Year Term 
 
Current Members: 
Last Name First Name App Res Expire Appointment Expire Notes 3 
Bartnik Mark 1/31/2018 04/30/2018  
Berk Robert 3/28/2018 4/30/2019  
Howrylak Frank 2/1/2014 4/30/2017  
Kanoza Shirley 3/28/2018 4/30/2019  
Murray William 5/23/2018 4/30/2018  
Weisgerber William 5/7/2017 4/30/2015 NO Reappointment 
Wilsher Cynthia 2/27/2016 4/30/2017  

 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA October 24, 2016 
 

- 8 - 

Nominations to the Charter Revision Committee: 
 
Term Expires:  4/30/2018  
 Term currently held by: William Weisgerber 
 
Interested Applicants: 
No applications or resumes on file. 

 
 
 

Historic District Commission 
Appointed by Council 
7 Regular Members 

3 Year Term 
 
Current Members: 

Last Name First Name App Res 
Expire 

Appointment 
Expire Notes 3 

Adams John 12/19/2016 5/15/2018  
Chambers Barbara 12/20/2015 3/1/2017  
McGee Timothy 5/7/2017 5/15/2018 P&R exp 9/30/17 
Petrulis Al 1/8/2016 3/1/2017 ACAB exp 9/30/18; TC exp 1/31/17 
Talarico Paula 1/8/2017 3/1/2018  
Vacancy   3/1/2017 Paul McCown resigned 10/20/16 
Voigt W. Kent 11/30/2017 3/1/2019  

 

 
Nominations to the Historic District Commission: 
 
Unexpired Term Expires:  3/1/2017  
 Term currently held by: Paul McCown resigned 
 
Interested Applicants: 
Last Name First Name App Resume Expire Notes 2 
Alali Yasser 6/14/2018  
Huber Laurie 6/10/2017  
Razzacki Syed 9/9/2018  
Salgat Charles 5/20/2017  

 

 
 
 

Liquor Advisory Committee 
Appointed by Council 
7 Regular Members 

3 Year Term 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA October 24, 2016 
 

- 9 - 

 
Current Members: 
Last Name First Name App Res Expire Appointment Expire Notes 3 
Comiskey Ann 3/18/2016 1/31/2018  
Ehlert Max 11/5/2016 1/31/2018  
Godlewski W. Stan 12/14/2012 1/31/2017  
Gorcyca David 12/6/2015 1/31/2017  
Hall Patrick 11/24/2017 1/31/2016 NO Reappointment 
Kaltsounis Andrew 11/24/2017 1/31/2019  
Oberski Jeff   Ex-Officio Member 
Payne Timothy 2/8/2014 1/31/2018  

 

 
Nominations to the Liquor Advisory Committee: 
 
Term Expires:  1/31/2019  
 Term currently held by: Patrick Hall 
 
Interested Applicants: 
No applications or resumes on file. 

 
 
 

Parks and Recreation Board 
Appointed by Council 

7 Regular Members and 1 Troy School District Member 
Regular Member: 3 Year Term  /  Troy School Board Member: 1 Year Term 

 
Current Members: 

Last Name First Name App Res 
Expire 

Appointment 
Expire Notes 1 

Baker Julia (Judy) 5/7/2015 9/30/2016  
Bo Elaine   Ex-Officio Member 
Hauff Gary 2/6/2014 7/31/2017 Troy School Dist. Rep.  
Huber Laurie 6/10/2017 9/30/2018  
Kaltsounis Orestis Rusty 8/27/2017 9/30/2018 ZBA Alt exp 1/31/2018 
McGee Timothy S. 8/13/2014 9/30/2017 Historic Dist Comm exp 5/15/18 
Slifkin Elizabeth 3/24/2017 7/31/2016 STUDENT 
Stewart Jeffrey L. 6/23/2018 9/30/2016  
Toth Steve 10/3/2013 9/30/2016  
Zikakis Janice 10/15/2016 9/30/2017  

 

 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA October 24, 2016 
 

- 10 - 

Nominations to the Parks and Recreation Board: 
 
Term Expires:  7/31/2017  
 Term currently held by: Elizabeth Slifkin 
 
Interested Applicants: 
Last Name First Name App Resume 

Expire 
Notes 2 

Angamuthu Rahul 4/21/2018 STUDENT 
Brandstetter Tim 10/17/2016  
Brikho Frencheska 3/23/2017 STUDENT; Planning Comm exp 7/31/16 
Buchanan Cynthia 4/20/2018  
Burrus MiVida 7/15/2018  
Chamberlain-Creanga Rebecca 5/23/2018  
Hao Claire 3/10/2018 STUDENT 
MacPherson Bruce 1/13/2018  
Messacar Beth 5/4/2018  
Oak Kulin 10/16/2018 STUDENT 
Regan Kathleen 3/26/2017 STUDENT; Traffic Comm. exp 7/31/16 
Salgat Charles 5/20/2017  
Schneeweis Adina 5/6/2018  
Wang Muyang 10/13/2018 STUDENT 
Wilsher Cynthia 10/9/2016  

 

 
 
 

Traffic Committee 
Appointed by Council 
7 Regular Members 

3 Year Term 
 
Current Members: 

Last Name First Name App Res 
Expire 

Appointment 
Expire Notes 1 Notes 3 

Brandstetter Tim 10/17/2016 1/31/2018   
Easterbrook David 11/24/2017 1/31/2016  NO Reappointment 
Huber R. Mitch 6/10/2017 1/31/2019   
Huotari William   Ex-Officio Member  
Kilmer Richard 12/12/2015 1/31/2017   
Mayer Gary   Ex-Officio Member  



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA October 24, 2016 
 

- 11 - 

Petrulis Al 1/8/2016 1/31/2017 ACAB exp 9/30/2018  
Regan Kathleen 3/26/2017 7/31/2016 STUDENT  
Roberts David   Ex-Officio Member  
Wilsher Cynthia 10/9/2016 1/31/2018   
Ziegenfelder Peter 12/9/2015 1/31/2017   

 

 
Nominations to the Traffic Committee: 
 
Term Expires:  1/31/2019  
 Term currently held by: David Easterbrook 
 
Term Expires:  7/31/2017  (STUDENT) 
 Term currently held by: Kathleen Regan 
 
Interested Applicants: 
Last Name First Name App Resume Expire Notes 2 
Brikho Frencheska 3/23/2017 STUDENT; Planning Comm exp 7/31/16 
Hao Claire 3/10/2018 STUDENT 
Sekhri Arun 8/19/2018  
Wang Muyang 10/13/2018 STUDENT 

 

 
Yes: 
No: 
 
I-3 No Closed Session Requested 
 
I-4 Big Beaver Trolley Proposal (Introduced by: Mayor Dane Slater) (Presented by: 

Robert Cramer, SMART) 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2016-10-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES City Administration to 
negotiate a proposed Agreement with SMART to provide shuttle service on Big Beaver Road, 
and to investigate potential funding sources for this service, which shall be brought to City 
Council for its consideration at the earliest possible opportunity.  
 
Yes: 
No: 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA October 24, 2016 
 

- 12 - 

I-5 Standard Purchasing Resolution 8:  Best Value Award – Emergency Medical and 
First Responder Services (Introduced by:  Fire Chief Dave Roberts and Purchasing 
Manager MaryBeth Murz) 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2016-10-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a Contract to provide Emergency 
Medical & First Responder Services for the City of Troy for three (3) years with the option to 
renew annually for three (3) years to the highest rated proposer, Beaumont Mobile Medicine of 
Troy, MI, for a total estimated annual amount of $498,006.00 predicated on the anticipated 
payable hours at prices contained in the bid tabulation opened October 13, 2016, a copy of 
which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting; contract to expire December 
31, 2019. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon the company’s 
submission of properly executed proposal and contract documents, including insurance 
certificates and all other specified requirements. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 

J. CONSENT AGENDA: 
J-1a Approval of “J” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2016-10-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES all items on the Consent Agenda as 
presented with the exception of Item(s)           , which shall be CONSIDERED after 
Consent Agenda (J) items, as printed. 
 
Yes:       
No:       
 
J-1b  Address of “J” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council  
 
J-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2016-10-      
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the following Minutes as submitted: 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA October 24, 2016 
 

- 13 - 

 
a) Special Joint City Council and Troy School Board Minutes-Draft – October 10, 2016 
b) City Council Minutes-Draft – October 10, 2016 
 
J-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations:   
 
a) America Recycles Day 2016 
b) Celebration of Diwali – The Festival of Lights – October 30, 2016 
c) Cindy Stewart – Esteemed Women of Michigan 2016 Honoree  
 
J-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions:   
 
a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2:  Low Bidders Meeting Specifications – Snow 

Removal Services 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2016-10-      
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a contract to provide seasonal 
requirements with an option to renew for one (1) additional season to Advanced Landscape & 
Builders Supply Co. of Clawson, Michigan for Proposal A, Casar Management, LLC., of St. Clair 
Shores, Michigan for Proposal B, DiPonio Contracting, Inc. of Shelby Township, Michigan for 
Front End Loader with 4-5 yard capacities and Truck with 10 foot Snowplow in Proposal E, 
Florence Cement Company of Shelby Township, Michigan for Front End Loader with 8-5 yard 
capacity, Truck with 8” Snowplow and 20,000 GVW Road Grader in Proposal E; at unit prices 
contained in the bid tabulation opened September 22, 2016; a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting, and the quotes received from Florence 
Cement Company and Diponio Contracting Inc., on October 7, 2016 and October 11, 2016. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES City of Troy 
Administration to extend prices established in Proposal E to additional vendors meeting 
requirements under emergency conditions for snow and ice removal. 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon contractor’s submission of 
properly executed contract documents, including insurance certificates and all other specified 
requirements. 
 
J-5 Request for Recognition as a Nonprofit Organization from Myasthenia Gravis 

Association, Inc. 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2016-10-      
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the request from Myasthenia Gravis 
Association, Inc., asking that they be recognized as a nonprofit organization operating in the 
community for the purpose of obtaining a charitable gaming license as recommended by City 
Management. 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA October 24, 2016 
 

- 14 - 

J-6 Former I-75 – Rochester Mobil Gas Station, 2745 Rochester Road Proposal to 
Complete Analytical Testing and Final Assessment/Closure Report 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2016-10-      
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES Proposal #PRB-16-229 (attached) 
from Innovative Environmental Solutions, Inc. dated October 18, 2016 in the amount of 
$9,850.00 for various environmental testing and reporting to the MDEQ concerning the former 
I75/Rochester Mobil gas station site.  
 

K. MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 
K-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:  None Submitted 
 
K-2 Memorandums (Items submitted to City Council that may require consideration at 
 some future point in time):   
a) Amendment to City Ordinance Chapter 7 Item 9 “Declared Emergency” 
 

L. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA FROM TROY 
RESIDENTS AND BUSINESSES: 

M. CITY COUNCIL/CITY ADMINISTRATION RESPONSE/REPLY TO PUBLIC 
COMMENT: 

N. COUNCIL REFERRALS:  
Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City Council Members for 
Placement on the Agenda 

N-1  No Council Referrals Submitted 
 

O. COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
O-1  No Council Comments Advanced 
 

P. REPORTS: 
P-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:   
a) Planning Commission-Draft – September 27, 2016 
b) Planning Commission-Final – September 27, 2016 
c) Building Code Board of Appeals-Draft – October 5, 2016  
 
P-2 Department Reports:   
a) Staff Response to Safety Concern 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA October 24, 2016 
 

- 15 - 

P-3 Letters of Appreciation:   
a) To Chief Mayer from Wendy Dingwall Regarding Troy High Cross Country Team 

Morning Practice 
b) To Chief Mayer from Unknown Resident Regarding Officer Assistance 
c) To Chief Roberts from Bruce Benson Regarding Eagles vs Troy Fire Department Event 
d) To Brian Kischnick from Mayor Slater Regarding Eleanor Yoon’s Outstanding Work on 

the Global Troy Advisory Committee 
e) To Chief Roberts from Nancy Butty Regarding Participation in the Apparatus Display for 

the Fire and Life Safety Program 
f) To Steve Vandette from Mark and Mary MacKinnon Regarding the Excellent Service 

Received from Guy Kitchen  
 
P-4 Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:  None Submitted 
 
P-5 Notice of Hearing for the Natural Gas Customers of Consumers Energy Co. Case 

No. U-18166 – Saginaw Trail Pipeline 
 

Q. COMMENTS ON ITEMS ON OR NOT ON THE AGENDA FROM MEMBERS 
OF THE PUBLIC OUTSIDE OF TROY (NOT RESIDENTS OF TROY AND 
NOT FROM TROY BUSINESSES): 

R. CLOSED SESSION:  
R-1 No Closed Session  
 

S. ADJOURNMENT: 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
Brian Kischnick, City Manager 
  



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA October 24, 2016 
 

- 16 - 

 
 

2016 SCHEDULED SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS 
October 25, 2016................... Joint Study City Council/Troy Downtown Development Authority 
November 14, 2016 ............................... Joint Study City Council/Troy Family Daze Committee 

 
 
 

2016 SCHEDULED REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 
November 14, 2016 .......................................................................................... Regular Meeting 
November 21, 2016 .......................................................................................... Regular Meeting 
December 5, 2016 ............................................................................................ Regular Meeting 
December 19, 2016 .......................................................................................... Regular Meeting 

 



 
PROCLAMATION 

AMERICA RECYCLES 2016 
 

WHEREAS, The world has changed a lot in the past century.  From individually packaged 
food servings to disposable diapers, more garbage is generated now than ever before.  The 
average American discards 7.5 pounds of garbage every day.  Our garbage, our solid waste 
stream, all goes to landfills, where it’s compacted and buried; and 
 
WHEREAS, To focus the nation’s attention on the importance of recycling, businesses, 
industries, government agencies, nonprofit organizations, and individuals have joined 
together to celebrate America Recycles 2016 and are encouraging their employees, staff, 
customers, membership, and all citizens to pledge to buy more recycled-content products 
starting today; and 
 
WHEREAS, Participating in America Recycles 2016 is one way our citizens can help raise 
awareness about the need to reduce waste by reusing, recycling and buying recycled 
products; and 
 
WHEREAS, The more we recycle, the less garbage winds up in our landfills and incineration 
plants.  By reusing aluminum, paper, glass, plastics and other materials, we can save 
production and energy costs, and reduce by up to 75% the negative impacts that the 
extraction and processing of virgin materials has on the environment. Plastics, made from 
precious and nonrenewable petroleum, and aluminum, which is mined from bauxite, are 
especially important to recycle; and  
 
WHEREAS, Recycling helps protect our resources, our environment, and our quality of life. 
The entire loop: Reduce, Reuse, Recycle is completed when we buy products made from 
recycled material; and 
 
WHEREAS, From July 2015 to June 2016, the City of Troy recycled 5,181 tons of glass, 
paperboard, cardboard, newspaper, metal, tin, and plastic and 9,104 tons of compost; and  
 
WHEREAS, State and community leaders need to spread the word about the excellent 
programs they have established, the growth of markets for recyclable materials, and the 
importance of buying recycled products; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the City of Troy City Council hereby proclaims 
America Recycles 2016 in Troy, Michigan, and urges all Troy residents to Reduce, Reuse 
and Recycle; 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That America Recycles 2016 is celebrated year-round to 
encourage people to recycle and buy products made from recycled materials. The theme for 
America Recycles 2016 is "One Day to Educate, One Day to Motivate, One Day to Make 
Recycling Bigger and Better 365 Days a Year.  Get Involved!"  
 
Presented this 24th day of October 2016. 
 
 
 
  

stewartc
Typewritten Text
C-01 / J-03a



 
PROCLAMATION TO RECOGNIZE 

CELEBRATION OF DIWALI - THE FESTIVAL OF LIGHTS  
OCTOBER 30, 2016 

 
WHEREAS, The Hindu American Foundation and more than one billion celebrants worldwide 
reverently observe the Holy Day of Diwali to mark the beginning of the Hindu New Year; and 
 
WHEREAS, Diwali, the “Festival of Lights” symbolizes the victory of dharma, and good over evil, 
and is one of the most celebrated festivals of Hindus, Sikhs and Jains; and 
 
WHEREAS, Asian Indian immigrants are the largest ethnic group of immigrants in the metro area 
with close to 5,000 living in Troy, and Troy is also home to one of the oldest and largest Hindu 
Temples in Michigan, the Bharatiya Temple of Metropolitan Detroit; and  
 
WHEREAS, The US Congress and House of Representatives officially passed unanimous 
resolutions since 2007 recognizing the religious and historical significance of Diwali; and  
 
WHEREAS, Diwali is a time for dana (charitable giving) and seva (selfless service) by bringing light 
in the form of wisdom, knowledge, nourishment, and shelter in order to alleviate the tangible forms 
of suffering, such as hunger, disease, and poverty; and 
 
WHEREAS, The shared Indian holiday of Diwali signifies a special time of peace and serenity, with 
the hope of building bridges of understanding and tearing down barriers of intolerance; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Troy City Council recognizes the religious and 
historical significance of Diwali, the Festival of Lights and Diwali's message of tolerance, 
compassion, and the victory of good over evil which resonates with the American spirit; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City of Troy proudly expresses its deepest respect for Indian 
Americans and South Asian Americans throughout the world and here in the Troy community, and 
all those who celebrate the Festival of Diwali on October 30, 2016. 
  
Presented this 24th day of October, 2016 

 
 

stewartc
Typewritten Text
C-02 / J-03b



PROCLAMATION IN RECOGNITION OF 
CINDY STEWART 

ESTEEMED WOMEN OF MICHIGAN 2016 HONOREE 
 
WHEREAS, Cindy Stewart demonstrates a lifestyle of commitment to her family, career and community as 
she tirelessly serves those around her; and 
 
WHAREAS, One of the most important aspects in Cindy’s life is her family, husband Jeff, sons Jeff and 
Jason; daughters-in-law Cheryl and Heather; and grandchildren Calvin, Hailey, Nickolas and Olivia. Cindy 
and Jeff have been Troy residents for 18 years, since Cindy was hired as the Community Affairs Director; and 
 
WHEREAS, Cindy’s volunteer efforts in our community began with the Boys & Girls Club of Troy in 2000 
when she became a volunteer on the Taste of Troy committee; was recruited to be a member of the Boys & 
Girls Club Board of Directors in 2005 and has served as Vice President in 2008 & 2009 and President of the 
Board of Directors in 2010 & 2011; has been the Chairperson for the Taste of Troy event, the Club’s largest 
fundraiser, since 2002  and annually volunteers at the Summer Camp Program registration event, annual 
carnivals and various other programs, serves on the Marketing Committee, Program & Membership 
Committee, Development/Endowment Planning Committee, Executive Committee and was a member of the 
2011 Youth of the Year Panel.; and 

WHEREAS, Cindy has served the Troy Police & Fire Benevolent Association Board as Secretary since 2002, 
The Troy Police Honor Guard Board of Directors since 2001, The Troy Community Coalition’s major fundraiser 
(Celebrity Night Dinner) Committee since 2007 and the annual Prayer Breakfast Committee since 2004; and 

WHEREAS, Cindy was a Courageous Persuaders volunteer, from 2001-2005,  has served on the Troy Youth 
Assistance Board of Directors since 2009 where she handles all marketing efforts; volunteers at all 
TYA events including annual Youth Recognition Awards Ceremony; works all fundraising events, and 
programs; and 

WHEREAS, Cindy has served on the Troy People Concerned Board of Directors since 2010, secretary of the 
Board since 2011; volunteered on the Charles A. Main, MD Pediatric Cancer Survivor Scholarship Fund 
Committee (Stars Guitars) at Beaumont Hospital for the past 6 years, served as a Volunteer Probation Officer 
at 52-4 District Court, 2009 – 2014, the Troy Historical Society Board of Directors since 2011, volunteer at Troy 
Historic Village events for the past 13 years including the Old Fashioned Christmas event, Trick or Treat on the 
Green, various annual Historic festivals, coordinated the annual Troy Traffic Jam Classic Car Show to benefit 
the Troy Historical Society, 2007-2015; and, 

WHEREAS, Cindy has been Emerald Lakes Homeowners Association’s co-chair of the annual Halloween 
Parade for the past seven years since 2009, and has been a Troy School District Diversity & Inclusion Council 
member, 2012 – present, Multiple Sclerous (MS) volunteer at annual Walks to raise money since 2009; and, 

WHEREAS, Being a breast cancer survivor, Cindy serves as a fundraiser for Breast Cancer related 
organizations – Shades of Pink and Making Strides Against Breast Cancer, as well as speaks at 
Beaumont Hospital events for Breast Cancer patients/survivors;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council extends special recognition to 
Cindy Stewart, for her selfless and tireless service and dedication to this community; and  
 
BE IT THEREFORE RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council, Troy’s organizations and residents 
congratulate Cindy Stewart for being named a 2016 Esteemed Women of Michigan Honoree and 
wish her continued success in all her future endeavors. 
 
Presented this 24th day of October, 2016. 

stewartc
Typewritten Text
C-03 / J-03c



 

 
CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  

 
 
Date: October 17, 2016 
 
To:  Brian Kischnick, City Manager 
 
From: Mark F. Miller, Director of Economic & Community Development 
 R. Brent Savidant, Planning Director 
 
Subject: PUBLIC HEARING – ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (File Number ZOTA 249) – 

Enhanced Cluster Option 
 
This item was initiated by the Planning Commission who recognized that only one development has 
taken advantage of the existing cluster option since it was adopted in 2005. The proposed provisions 
are intended to remove unnecessary barriers to cluster development and incentivize design flexibility 
and creativity.     
 
The provisions were discussed by the Planning Commission at previous meetings. Draft amendments 
include the following: 

 Automatic 20% open space requirement and 20% density bonus. 
 Three options for earning additional density bonus. 
 No cap on density bonus. 
 Encourages development of smaller homes suitable for empty nesters and retirees. 
 Requires public notice and Planning Commission public hearing. 
 Preliminary Site Plan Approval made by City Council. 

 
The Planning Commission held a public hearing on this item on September 27, 2016, and 
recommended approval of the text amendment with some minor modifications with a 7-0 vote. The 
minor modifications are described in the attached minutes and were incorporated into the City Council 
Public Hearing Draft. The attached PowerPoint presentation that was presented at the public hearing 
provides additional background. 
 
 
 
 
 
Approved as to form and legality:  _____________________________________ 
  Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 
 
Attachments: 

1. Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment Public Hearing Draft 
2. Planning Commission Minutes (excerpts); April 26, 2016, August 9, 2016, September 27, 2016 (draft) 
3. Planning Commission PowerPoint Presentation 

 
G:\ZOTAs\ZOTA 249 Enhanced Cluster Option\CC Memo_Public Hearing 2016 10 24.doc 

stewartc
Typewritten Text
E-01



1 
 

CITY OF TROY 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND 
 CHAPTER 39 OF THE CODE 

 OF THE CITY OF TROY 
CITY COUNCIL PUBLIC HEARING DRAFT 

 
The City of Troy ordains: 
 
Section 1.  Short Title 
 
This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as an amendment to Chapter 39, Zoning 
Ordinance, of the Code of the City of Troy.  
 
Section 2.  Amendment 
 
Chapter 39 of the Code of the City of Troy is amended as follows: 
 
Remove existing language for Section 10.04 and replace with following Section 
10.04 Cluster Development to read as follows:  
 

A. Intent. The Cluster Option is offered as an alternative to traditional residential 
development. The Cluster Option is intended to: 
 

1. Encourage the use of property in accordance with its natural character. 
2. Assure the permanent preservation of open space and other natural 

features. 
3. Provide recreational facilities and/or open space within a reasonable 

distance of all residents of the Cluster development. 
4. Allow innovation and greater flexibility in the design of residential 

developments. 
5. Facilitate the construction and maintenance of streets, utilities, and public 

services in a more economical and efficient manner. 
6. Ensure compatibility of design and use within cluster developments and 

between neighboring properties. 
7. Encourage a less sprawling form of development, thus preserving open 

space as undeveloped land. 
8. Allow for design innovation to provide flexibility for land development 

where the normal development approach would otherwise be 
unnecessarily restrictive or contrary to other City goals  
 

B. Uses.  
1. To be eligible for Cluster consideration, property must be zoned R-1A, R-

1B, R-1C, R-1D, or R-1E. 
 



2 
 

2. The permitted uses shall be limited to single-family detached residential 
development, residential accessory structures, non-commercial recreation 
uses and open space. 

 
3. Two--family  dwellings are permitted as a Special Use in the R1A, R1B, 

R1C, R1D, and R1E Zoning Districts with the following regulations: 
a. The site shall have frontage on and primary access to a major or 

minor arterial. 
b. Perimeter Setback: Perimeter setback for principal structures from 

all of the borders of the development shall be equal to the rear-yard 
setback requirement for the underlying zoning district of the 
property directly adjacent to each border. The required open space 
areas may be located partially or completely within the required 
perimeter setback. 

c. Comply with the Special Use standards as set forth in Section 9.03. 
 

C.  Base Number of Units  
1. The number of dwelling units permitted shall not exceed the number of 

dwelling units customarily developable in the zoning district in which the 
proposed development is located, developed with a conventional layout 
and all applicable ordinances and laws observed. In order to calculate 
density with a conventional subdivision or site condominium layout, the 
applicant shall submit a concept site plan of the property with a 
conventional layout. The plan shall indicate the topography of the site at 
two (2) foot contour intervals and the limits of all floodplains, water bodies, 
wetlands, easements, and other areas which would be set aside and 
preserved due to impracticality, economic unfeasibility, contractual 
prohibition, or based upon applicable law or ordinance. In addition, the 
concept plan with the conventional layout shall include the general street 
pattern and lot configurations. In general, the plan shall be drawn with 
sufficient detail to permit the Planning Commission to determine the 
density that would be achieved by conventional development 
 

2. If all requirements 10.04.D are met, the underlying density established by 
10.04.C.1 may be increased by twenty percent (20%).  

 
D. Open Space Requirements. 

 
1. The following land areas are not included as dedicated open space for the 

purposes of the Cluster development option: 
a. The area of any street right-of-way. 
b. The submerged area of any lakes, rivers, ponds or streams. 
c. The required front and side setbacks surrounding a residential 

structure. 
d. Required building separations. 



3 
 

e. Storm water detention or retention facilities, with the exception of 
bio-retention areas that provide an active or passive recreation 
function, which can be considered open space. 

f. Non-functional open space due to limited width or depth as 
determined by the City Council.   

 
2. All land within a development that is not devoted to a residential unit, 

limited common elements, accessory structures, vehicle access, vehicle 
parking, a roadway, or an approved improvement, shall be set aside as 
common land for recreation, conservation, or preserved in an 
undeveloped state. 
 

3. A Cluster development shall maintain a minimum of twenty percent (20%) 
of the gross area of the site as dedicated open space held in common 
ownership.  

 
4. Benefit.  The proposed open space shall provide at least one (1) of the 

following open space benefits: 
 

a. Significant Natural Features. Preservation of significant natural 
features contained on the site, as long as it is in the best interest of 
the City to preserve the natural features that might be negatively 
impacted by conventional residential development. The 
determination of whether the site has significant natural features 
shall be made by the City Council, after review of a Natural 
Features Analysis, prepared by the applicant, that inventories these 
features; or  

b. Recreation Facilities. If the site lacks significant natural features, it 
can qualify with the provision of usable recreation facilities to which 
all residents of the development shall have reasonable access. 
Such recreation facilities include areas such as a neighborhood 
park, passive recreational facilities, soccer fields, ball fields, bike 
paths, or similar facilities that provide a feature of community-wide 
significance and enhance residential development. Recreational 
facilities that are less pervious than natural landscape shall not 
comprise more than fifty (50) percent of the open space. The 
determination of whether the site has significant natural features 
shall be made by the City Council after review of a Site Analysis 
Plan, prepared by the applicant, that inventories these features; or 

c. Preservation of Common Open Space or  Creation of Natural 
Features. If the site lacks significant natural features, a proposed 
development may also qualify if the development will preserve 
common open space or create significant natural features such as 
wetlands. The determination of whether the site has significant 
natural features shall be made by the City Council after review of a 



4 
 

Site Analysis Plan, prepared by the applicant, which inventories 
these features. 

 
5. The common open space may be centrally located along the road frontage 

of the development, located to preserve significant natural features, or 
located to connect open spaces throughout the development.  
 

6. Connections between the dedicated open space of the development and 
adjacent open space, public land or existing or planned safety paths is 
preferred and may be required by the City Council. 

 
7. The dedicated open space shall be set aside by the developer through an 

irrevocable conveyance, such as deed restriction, restrictive covenant, 
conservation easement, plat dedication, or other legal document that is 
subject to review and approval by the City Council, after review and 
recommendation by the City Attorney. The irrevocable conveyance 
document shall be approved before there can be final approval of the 
development (final site plan approval), and the developer shall record 
such documents with the Oakland County Register of Deeds. The City of 
Troy (or the common owners) shall be specifically identified as the 
beneficiary of its provisions. The irrevocable conveyance documents shall 
provide and/or address the following: 

a. The dedicated open space shall be perpetually maintained by 
parties that have an ownership interest in the open space. 

b. Standards for scheduled maintenance of the open space. 
c. If the owners of the dedicated open space have failed to maintain 

it so that it becomes a public nuisance, then the City shall 
undertake all future maintenance, and shall annually assess the 
costs for such maintenance upon the property owners in the 
association, based on the benefit allocation for each property as 
determined by the City assessor. 

d. The irrevocable conveyance shall assure that the open space will 
be protected from all forms of development, except as shown on 
the approved Final Site Plan. Such conveyance shall indicate the 
proposed allowable use(s) of the dedicated open space. The 
open space restrictions shall prohibit uses or activities that 
negatively affect the dedicated open space, including the 
following: 

i. Dumping or storing of any material or refuse. 
ii. Activity that may cause risk of soil erosion or threaten 

any living plant material. 
iii. Cutting or removal of live plant material except for 

removal of dying or diseased vegetation. 
iv. Use of motorized off-road vehicles. 
v. Cutting, filling or removal of vegetation from wetland 

areas. 



5 
 

vi. Use of pesticides, herbicides or fertilizers within any 
wetlands area. 
 

e. The irrevocable conveyance shall also provide the following: 
i. The dedicated open space shall forever remain open 

space, subject only to uses approved by the City on 
the approved Final Site Plan. 

ii. Any structures or buildings accessory to a recreation 
or conservation use may be erected within the 
dedicated open space. These accessory structures or 
buildings shall not exceed one (1) percent of the 
required open space area. 

 
8. Maintenance of Open Space. The applicant shall provide documentation 

to guarantee to the satisfaction of the City Council that all open space 
portions of the development will be maintained as approved and that all 
commitments for such maintenance are binding on successors and future 
owners of the subject property. All such documents shall be subject to 
approval by the City Attorney. This provision shall not prohibit a transfer of 
ownership or control, provided notice of such transfer is provided to the 
City, and that the continued maintenance guarantees remain satisfactory 
to the City, and the land uses continue as approved in the Cluster 
development. 
 

9. Cohesive Neighborhood. The proposed development shall be designed to 
create a cohesive community neighborhood through common open space 
areas for passive or active recreation and resident interaction. All open 
space areas shall be reasonably accessible to all residents of the 
development. 

 
10. Unified Control. The proposed development site shall be under single 

ownership or control, such that there is a single person or entity having 
proprietary responsibility for the full completion of the project. The 
applicant shall provide sufficient documentation of ownership or control in 
the form of agreements, contracts, covenants, and/or deed restrictions 
that indicate that the development will be completed in its entirety as 
proposed. All documents shall be subject to the review and approval by 
the City Attorney. 
 

11. Density Impact. The proposed type and density of use shall not place an 
unreasonable impact on the subject and/or surrounding land and/or 
property owners and occupants and/or the natural environment. An 
unreasonable impact shall be considered an unacceptable significant 
adverse effect on the quality of the surrounding community and the natural 
environment in comparison to the impacts associated with conventional 
development. 



6 
 

 
E. Bulk Regulations and Regulatory Flexibility: The City shall permit specific 

departures from the dimensional requirements of the Zoning Ordinance for yards 
and units as a part of the approval process. The applicant may cluster the 
dwellings, as long as the following requirements are satisfied: 
 

1. Overall density shall not exceed the number of residential cluster units 
determined in Section 10.04.C unless a density bonus as set forth in 
Section 10.04.H has been granted by the City Council. 
 

2. Setback provisions shall be as follows: 
 

a. Perimeter Setback:  The perimeter setback for principal structures 
from all of the borders of the development shall be equal to the rear 
yard setback requirement for the underlying zoning district of the 
property directly adjacent to each border. The required open space 
areas may be located partially or completely within the  perimeter 
setback. 

b. Setback requirements for principal structures on the interior of the 
development shall be as follows. If property lines do not exist 
between houses, the setbacks shall be measured to an imaginary 
line of equal distance between the houses. A duplex shall be 
treated as a single-detached residence for the purpose of 
determining required setbacks. The minimum setbacks shall be as 
follows. 

1) Front: Twenty (20) feet. There shall be at least twenty (20) 
feet between the front of the building and the property line. 
There shall be twenty-five (25) feet between the garage door 
and the closest edge of the sidewalk to allow for an 
automobile to be parked in the driveway without obstructing 
the sidewalk. 
 

2) Rear: Twenty-five (25) feet. 
 

3) Side: Seven and one-half (7.5) feet. For detached units with 
“rear-to-side” relationships, the required setback shall be 
fifteen (15) feet for each unit, for a total of thirty (30) feet. 
 

3. Required street frontage. The extent of street frontage shall be determined 
by the Planning Commission, in its discretion, with greater deviations from 
minimum frontage requirements applicable in the district to be permitted in 
proportion to the extent and importance of natural resources,topographical 
conditions, floodplains and wetlands to be preserved on the property, and 
taking into consideration the size and shape of the development site, 
public safety factors, aesthetics and impact upon the surrounding 
developments. 



7 
 

 
4. All applicable zoning district regulations to height, parking, loading, 

general provisions, and other requirements shall be met. 
 

5. Regulatory Flexibility.   The City Council, based upon a 
recommendation from the Planning Commission, may waive the front, 
side, rear, and perimeter setback provisions as set forth in 10.4.E.2 
provided that the applicant has demonstrated innovative and creative site 
and building designs and solutions, which would otherwise be unfeasible 
or unlikely to be achieved absent this provision. 

 
F. Landscaping.  Required landscaping shall be in accordance with section 13.02.F 

Subdivision and Site Condominium Landscaping.   
 

G. Access.  Principal access to the development shall be provided by twenty-eight 
(28) foot wide public streets constructed to City standards that are located within 
sixty (60) foot wide rights-of-way or by twenty-eight (28) foot wide streets 
constructed to City public street standards that are located, within forty (40) foot 
private easements for public access. Sidewalks shall be constructed across the 
frontage of all dwelling unit parcels in accordance with City standards. Public 
utilities shall be placed within street rights-of-way, or within easements approved 
as to size and location by the City Engineer. 

 
H. Density Bonus.  To encourage the use of the cluster development as set forth in 

the objectives in Section 10.04.A, a variable density bonus may be allowed at the 
discretion of City Council, based on a recommendation from Planning 
Commission.  Density bonuses may be based upon a demonstration by the 
applicant of the following elements:   
 
 

1. Open Space.   For every ten percent (10%) additional open space above 
the minimum required amount that is not encumbered by rights-of-way or 
utility easements, a ten percent (10%) bonus density may be applied, or 
fraction thereof above the base yield number of units as established in 
10.04.C.1. 
 

2. Housing Diversity and Options.   A bonus may be provided for a 
development that provides a diverse variety of housing types or provides a 
type of housing that is desired, but underserved in the city.   

 
Eligible bonus for housing diversity shall be equal to one additional unit for 
every unit above the base yield number of units established in 10.04.C.1; 
provided that the base number of units to establish the bonus and the 
equivalent bonus units meet the following requirements:    

 



8 
 

a. Maximum home square footage shall not exceed 1,500  sq/ft; and 
b. First floor master bedroom and laundry room shall be provided.  

 
3. Sustainable Design.  A 10% unit bonus above the base yield number of 

units established in 10.04.C.1 may be provided for a  development that 
utilizes  sustainable design best practices including, but not limited to 
green infrastructure, stormwater best management practices, or green 
buildings.   A sustainable design bonus shall be discretionary from the City 
Council, based on recommendation from the Planning Commission.   
 

4. Such density bonuses are in addition to the bonus established in 
10.04.C.2 

 
I. Standards for Review 

1. Review. In reviewing any application for a Cluster Development, the 
Planning Commission shall identify and evaluate all factors relevant to the 
application, and shall report its findings in full, along with its 
recommendations for disposition of the application, to the City Council. 
 

2. Findings. The applicant shall demonstrate that through the use of the 
Cluster option, the development will accomplish a sufficient number of the 
following objectives, as are reasonably applicable to the site, providing: 

a. Long-term protection and preservation of natural resources, natural 
features, and open space of a significant quantity and/or quality in 
need of protection or preservation, and which would otherwise be 
unfeasible or unlikely to be achieved absent these regulations. 

b. Innovative and creative site design through flexibility in the siting of 
dwellings and other development features that would otherwise be 
unfeasible or unlikely to be achieved absent these regulations. 

c. Appropriate buffer and/or land use transitions between the Cluster 
development and surrounding properties.  

d. A compatible mixture of open space, landscaped areas, and/or 
pedestrian amenities. 

e. Sustainable design features and techniques, such as green 
building, stormwater management best practices, and low impact 
design, which will promote and encourage energy conservation and 
sustainable development. 

f. A means for owning common open space and for protecting it from 
development in perpetuity. 

g. Any density bonus is commensurate with the benefit offered to 
achieve such bonus. 

h. The cluster development shall be adequately served by essential 
public facilities and services, such as: streets, pedestrian or bicycle 
facilities, police and fire protection, drainage systems, refuse 
disposal, water and sewage facilities, and schools. Such services 



9 
 

shall be provided and accommodated without an unreasonable 
public burden. 

i. The architectural form, scale, and massing shall ensure buildings 
are compatible with and complementary to those of adjacent 
properties and the selected building materials are of high, durable 
quality. The garage shall not be the dominant feature of a 
residential building. 

 
J. Application Requirements. In addition to the information required by the City of 

Troy for all other site plans, any development proposing to utilize the Cluster Plan 
shall contain the following: 
 
1. A complete description of the land proposed to be dedicated for the common 

use of lot owners in the association or to the City, including the following: 
a. A legal description of dedicated open space. 
b. A topographical and boundary survey of dedicated open space. 
c. A Natural Features Analysis that inventories all significant natural 

features on the property and on abutting properties, if applicable. 
 

2. Information regarding current and proposed ownership and use of the 
dedicated open space, including the following: 

 
a. The proposed ownership and control of the open space. 
b. The proposed methods of regulating the use of the common 

facilities and areas so as to eliminate possible nuisances to other 
property owners and/or nuisances that require enforcement by the 
City of Troy. 

c. The proposed and/or potential uses of dedicated open space and 
the proposed improvements to be constructed by the developer. 

 
3. A detailed narrative and graphic plan that indicates a specific method(s) for 

protecting significant natural features including  Protected Trees, wetlands, 
water courses, and open space during construction. The plan shall be 
consistent with the City’s Woodland Protection requirements as set forth in 
Section 13.07, and shall be agreeable to the developer, who shall so indicate 
with his/her signature on the detailed narrative and graphic plan. 

 
4. Other relevant information necessary to show that the proposed development 

qualifies for approval as a Cluster development. 
 
5. Public Hearing and Notice Requirement.  All applications for a Cluster Plan 

approval require public notice and a public hearing. Section 3.04, Public 
Notice Requirements, sets forth notification.   

 
 
 



10 
 

Section 3.  Savings 
 
All proceedings pending, and all rights and liabilities existing, acquired or incurred, at the 
time this Ordinance takes effect, are hereby saved.  Such proceedings may be 
consummated under and according to the ordinance in force at the time such proceedings 
were commenced.  This ordinance shall not be construed to alter, affect, or abate any 
pending prosecution, or prevent prosecution hereafter instituted under any ordinance 
specifically or impliedly repealed or amended by this ordinance adopting this penal 
regulation, for offenses committed prior to the effective date of this ordinance; and new 
prosecutions may be instituted and all prosecutions pending at the effective date of this 
ordinance may be continued, for offenses committed prior to the effective date of this 
ordinance, under and in accordance with the provisions of any ordinance in force at the 
time of the commission of such offense. 
 
Section 4.  Severability Clause 
 
Should any word, phrase, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance be held invalid 
or unconstitutional, the remaining provision of this ordinance shall remain in full force and 
effect. 
 
Section 5.  Effective Date 
 
This amendment to the Zoning Ordinance shall take effect ten (10) days after publication, 
which shall be published within 15 days of adoption, as required the Michigan Zoning 
Enabling Act (Act 110 of 2006). 
 
This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, Michigan, at 
a regular meeting of the City Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, MI, on the 
_______ day of _____________, 2016. 
 
 
 
  ______________________________ 
  Dane Slater, Mayor 
 
 
  ______________________________ 
 Aileen Dickson, City Clerk  
 
 
G:\ZOTAs\ZOTA 249 Enhanced Cluster Option\City Council Public Hearing Draft ZOTA 249.doc  



PLANNING COMMISSION STUDY MEETING – FINAL  APRIL 26, 2016 
 
 
 
3. ENHANCED CLUSTER OPTION (File Number ZOTA 249) – Site Visits 
 

The Planning Commission boarded a van and visited the following residential cluster 
developments in the City of Auburn Hills, Michigan: 
 
Auburn Grove Condominium 
• 124 homes on 52.02 acres 
• 53.4% open space 
• 2.38 units per gross acre 
• Two and four unit attached homes 
 
Hawkwoods Circle Condominium 
• 15 homes on 8.27 acres 
• 45.8% open space (6.04 acres of uplands) 
• 2.5 units per acre 
• One family detached homes 
 
Arbor Cove Condominium 
• 94 homes on 36.71 acres 
• 32% open space (11.6 acres of wetlands) 
• 2.56 units per gross acre/3.74 units per net acre 
• Two unit attached homes 
 
Heritage in the Hills Condominium 
• 281 units 
• Approximately 100 acres of wetlands 
• Gated 24/7 
• 7,000 square foot clubhouse 
• 55 and older community 
 
There was general discussion by the Planning Commission during the site visits. The bus 
returned to City Hall at approximately 7:30 p.m. 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL  AUGUST 9, 2016 
 
 

OTHER ITEMS 
 
7. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (File Number ZOTA 249) – Enhanced 

Cluster Option 
 
Mr. Carlisle addressed the following: 
• Private vs. public roads; inter-connectivity. 
• Maximum home square footage in relation to bonus. 
• Developer feedback. 
• General comparison chart in memorandum dated August 2, 2016. 
 
Mr. Carlisle said he would add text relating to the requirement of a Public Hearing and 
make some minor clarifications to the proposed text. 
 
Chair Edmunds opened the floor for public comment. 
 
Kamal Shouhayib of Choice Group addressed the value of the City’s intent to adopt an 
enhanced cluster development option. 
 
Chair Edmunds closed the floor for public comment. 
 
It was the consensus of the Planning Commission to schedule a Public Hearing for the 
next available Planning Commission meeting. 
 

 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT SEPTEMBER 27, 2016 
  
 
 

1 
 

ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT 
 
8. PUBLIC HEARING - ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (File Number ZOTA 249) 

– Cluster Option 
 
A PowerPoint review of the proposed Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment was 
presented. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
There was discussion on: 
• (page 1) A. Intent. 6. – Revise language to reflect compatibility of design and use 

within cluster development and between neighboring properties. 
• (page 5) D. Open Space Requirements. 7. e. – Correct numbering sequence. 
• (page 6) E. Bulk Regulations and Regulatory Flexibility. 2. b. – Add language to 

reflect there shall be 20 feet from the front property line to the principal structure. 
• (page 8) H. Density Bonus. 3. Sustainable Design – Add text “and/or”. 
• (page 9) I. Standards for Review. 2. i. – Add “compatible” to architectural language. 
• Language relating to garage doors shall not be dominant feature. 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2016-09-061 
Moved by: Hutson 
Support by: Crusse 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City Council 
that Article 10 of Chapter 39 of the Code of the City of Troy, which includes enhanced 
provisions related to the cluster option, be amended as printed on the proposed Zoning 
Ordinance Text Amendment, in addition to the comments listed by the Planning 
Commission during discussion. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
Absent: Faison, Kuppa 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 
 
G:\ZOTAs\ZOTA 249 Enhanced Cluster Option\Minutes\2016 09 27 Regular Meeting_Draft_Excerpt.doc 



City Of  
Troy

Enhanced Cluster 
Ordinance

Public Hearing
9/27/16



Cluster Development is a zoning concept 
that involves grouping homes within a 
development so that the remaining land on 
the site can be preserved for recreation, 
common open space, or protection of 
natural features.

What is Cluster Development? 



CONVENTIONAL CLUSTER

Why Cluster?



Advantages of Cluster Development

• Preserves natural features
• Permits creative design 
• Preserves character of area 
• Reduces infrastructure 



Existing Cluster Ordinance 

• Only one development has taken 
advantage of the existing 
development option

• Benefit does not offset restrictions 



Direction Received

1. Remove unnecessary barriers to cluster 
development 

2. Incentivize

3. Permit design flexibility and creativity  



Eliminate Unnecessary 
Provisions 

 Reduce minimum open space from 30% to 
20%

 Eliminate density bonus requirement of:
 A Sustainable Design Project; 
 Perimeter “open space” cluster of 150-feet; or 
 Donation of land for community benefit, or 

similar element as determined by City Council.

Relates to 
Direction 1



Design Flexibility

 Maintain existing front yard (20’), rear yard (25’) 
and side yard (7.5’) setbacks; but 

 Permit the City Council to waive the setback 
provisions provided that application: 
Has demonstrated innovative and creative site, 

and building designs and solutions; and
Met specific standards  

Relates to 
Direction 2, 3



Base Density 

 Base density is determined with a parallel plan 

 If all requirements are met, the base density by-right 
may be increased by twenty percent (20%) 

Relates to 
Direction 2



Density Bonus 

 A variable density bonus may be allowed at the 
discretion of City Council 

 There is no maximum density bonus above the base 
yield number of units. 

Relates to 
Direction 2



Density Bonus 

Three Options: 
1. Open Space
2. Housing Diversity and Options
3. Sustainable Design

Relates to 
Direction 2



Open Space 

 For every ten percent (10%) additional open space 
above the minimum required amount a ten percent 
(10%) bonus density may be applied.

I.E 30% open space = 30% density bonus
40% open space = 40% density bonus 

Relates to 
Direction 2



Housing Diversity and Options

 A one for one bonus for a diverse variety of 
housing types or provides a type of housing 
that is desired, but is underserved in the city.   
 Maximum home square footage cannot exceed 

1,500 sq/ft.  
 One (1) first floor bedroom must be provided. 

Relates to 
Direction 2, 3



Sustainable Design 

A 10% unit bonus may be provided for a 
development that utilizes sustainable 
design best practices including:
Green infrastructure; or 
Naturalized stormwater management; or 
Green buildings.  

Relates to 
Direction 2, 3



Two-Family Dwellings 

 Allow  two-family dwellings 
as a Special Use  in R1A, 
R1B, R1-C, R1-D, and R1-E
 The site shall have frontage 

on and primary access to a 
major or minor arterial.

 Maintain periphery setback 
requirements

Relates to 
Direction 2, 3



Process

 All proposed Cluster Developments require a public notice and 
public hearing 

 All proposed Cluster Developments are reviewed by the 
Planning Commission, who make a recommendation to City 
Council

 Approval is granted by the City Council 

 All proposed cluster developments must meet required 
standards. 



Summary
 Permit greater design flexibility

 Reduced setbacks
 Attached housing
 Sustainable design

 Permit greater density
 20% automatic density bonus
 Three options for additional bonus
 No cap on density bonus

 Process and Protection
 Requires a public notice and Public Hearing
 Preliminary Site Plan Approval made by City Council based on recommendation from 

Planning Commission 



City Of  
Troy

Enhanced Cluster 
Ordinance

Public Hearing
9/27/16



 

Troy Big Beaver Corridor Shuttle 
A PUBLIC/PRIVATE PARTNERSHIP CONCEPT 

Developed in Partnership with the City of Troy and SMART 
October 2016  

stewartc
Typewritten Text
I-04



PAGE 1 

Overview 
The Big Beaver Corridor in the City of Troy is a dynamic, growing ‘main street’ – home to 
numerous hotels, offices, restaurants and retail establishments.  Centrally located in 
Oakland County and accessible to the region, this stretch of boulevard is poised for 
continued growth for years to come.  The recent relocation of the Birmingham Amtrak 
Train Station to the Troy Transit Center provides an additional opportunity for regional 
connectivity only a mile south of the Big Beaver Corridor.   

The development pattern, form and character of development over the past decades has 
mirrored national development trends, with a focus on large individual buildings with 
ample parking for cars.  Recent trends nationally have turned interest back toward 
mobility options, including the ability to walk, bike, or otherwise move between 
destinations without having to rely on a personal vehicle – especially for visitors staying at 
a hotel.  SMART provides some fixed route and flexible route service along the corridor, 
but the frequency and design of the service is not optimized for the type of frequent 
circulating service required by the objectives of the corridor stakeholders. 

The City has already invested time and energy in contemplating this trend through the 
“Move Across Troy” initiative, which focuses on navigating the Big Beaver Corridor.  
SMART, as the mobility authority for Troy and the region, started meeting with the City to 
discuss how public transportation could play a role in the developing priority – leading to 
this formal concept. 

KEY OBJECTIVES 

− Provide mobility options for workers and visitors along Big Beaver 

− Connect hotels with restaurants and shopping 

− Connect hotels with Troy Transit Center connecting to train and airport 

− Encourage business visitors to stay, work and play along the corridor 

− Connect Big Beaver corridor with Troy Transit Center 

KEY CHALLENGES 

− Balancing frequency and travel time versus convenience of stops 

− Connecting opposite sides of the corridor efficiently 

− Controlling costs while providing an attractive service 

− Educating users/user experience and ease of use 



PAGE 2 

Service Concept: Big Beaver Corridor Shuttle 
After several meetings between the staff of the City and SMART, a service concept was 
developed to introduce a level of scheduled shuttle service along the Big Beaver Corridor, 
including a connection along Coolidge Road to the Troy Transit Center.  This initial 
concept attempts to balance the challenges and objectives noted above, while also 
identifying an acceptable level of investment for the City to demonstrate the service and 
encourage support for a more robust service. 

 

SHUTTLE SERVICE OPERATION AND ROUTING 

− The shuttle vehicles will run on a regular frequency along the corridor in a loop 
pattern, meaning the vehicles will travel the length of their route along one side of 
the street before turning around and heading the length in the opposite direction.   

− To keep the travel time along the corridor as fast as possible, the vehicles will 
generally remain on Big Beaver and Coolidge, with a few exceptions noted on the 
route map.   

− The initial routing will divide the corridor into two loops (East and West) to 
maintain a faster travel time east to west, avoiding a long trip from one side of the 
street to the other where the shuttle has to go all the way around the end of the 
route first.  The two loops will meet at Livernois Road, and will have a pre-
determined location to meet for riders transferring between loops.  



PAGE 3 

FREQUENCY AND HOURS OF SERVICE 

− West Loop shuttle vehicles will arrive at each stop every 15 minutes or less.  This 
will require three vehicles in service on the West Loop. 

− East Loop shuttle vehicles will arrive at each stop every 30 minutes or less.  This 
will require one vehicle in service on the East Loop. 

− Due to the higher density of destinations, the West Loop will have a higher initial 
frequency.  The frequencies are designed to allow the two loops to meet around 
the same time in the middle (every other time). 

− The initial concept and cost estimate in this document is based on a limited time 
of day service to limit costs.  The service will operate weekdays for 8 hours, split 
between 10am-2pm and 4pm-8pm. 

 
VEHICLES, STOPS AND AMENITIES 

− The vehicles can be any number of types including trolley style (30’ Medium Heavy 
Duty) or small bus style (23’ Cutaway similar to SMART and Troy Medi-Go 
vehicles).  Initial service may require the use of existing SMART and/or Troy 
vehicles while new vehicles are ordered and manufactured. 

− The vehicles will be lift-equipped to accommodate disabled passengers.  If the 
vehicles are not lift-equipped, an ADA-accessible vehicle would need to be 
available any time the shuttle is running to pick up a passenger who requires an 
accessible vehicle. 

− The vehicles can be wrapped with patterns, graphics, pictures and business 
information for corridor businesses, but must include the SMART logo in some 
form and cannot include any paid advertisements. 



PAGE 4 

− Each stop will have a unique branded sign and a panel for printed information for 
riders.  The stops will be co-located with SMART Bus stops in most cases where 
the stops are on the street. 

− Highest use stops that do not already have a modern glass bus shelter and/or 
bench would be outfitted with those amenities. 

HOW TO RIDE THE SHUTTLE 

− The service would be free to ride (no fare) for everyone. 

− The service would be open to the public. 

− SMART and the City could partner to develop features to allow cell phone/website 
shuttle tracking, next shuttle information, and schedules. 

− The City or others could host a shuttle official website. 

  



PAGE 5 

Costs and Responsibilities 

RESPONSIBILITIES 

The City and SMART will work with the business community, non-profit groups, and the 
public in developing, implementing, and adjusting the shuttle service.  Initially the service 
would be run through the City with assistance from SMART.  The following outlines the 
roles and responsibilities for the initial concept. 

SMART 

− SMART will procure and lease four vehicles to the City for this concept at no cost 
to the City through existing grant programs.  SMART will work to find used 
vehicles while the new vehicles are ordered and manufactured, depending on the 
City’s desired timeframe.  If the service is ended, the vehicles will be returned to 
SMART for use in our service area for other services. 

− Under the current system for opt-in communities like Troy, SMART will provide 
maintenance and repairs needed for the vehicles for only the cost of parts 
required.  The service will be handled at our Troy Terminal just ½ mile south of 
the corridor. 

− SMART will continue to provide staff assistance in the design, operation, and 
adjustment of the shuttle service. 

− SMART will help the City research and apply for grant funds that could help cover 
any of the operating or capital requirements of the project, including dispatch, 
scheduling, or vehicle locator equipment. 

− SMART will install and maintain modern glass bus shelters and/or other amenities 
at stops when located along the public right-of-way, including installing any 
shuttle signs provided by the City (if desired). 

CITY OF TROY 

− Troy will operate the shuttle service as part of the City government structure 
and/or Troy Medi-Go.  This includes pay, benefits, drug and alcohol testing, hiring, 
firing and discipline for all necessary drivers and support staff.  This also includes 
all of the costs of operating the service, including fuel, lubricants, supplies and 
maintenance of vehicles and supporting equipment and facilities (except for the 
shuttle stops. 

− SMART has estimated that the driver cost for this concept, based on the service 
description and frequencies above (8 hours per weekday, 15 minutes frequency 



PAGE 6 

West Loop/30 minutes East Loop), to be approximately $100,000 annually.  This 
includes: 

− $75,000 for 6,200 driver hours at $12.00 per hour (no benefits) for West Loop 

− $25,000 for 2,100 driver hours at $12.00 per hour (no benefits) for East Loop 

− As operator, Troy will be responsible for phone system, number, and handling calls 
and complaints about the service. 

− Troy will need to have a system in place for dispatching and tracking the vehicles.  
SMART will provide information about our system and also help pursue grant 
opportunities to fund modern dispatch/vehicle locator equipment. 

− Troy will be the primary agency in any efforts to coordinate and/or partner with 
any other supporters of the service including the retail, restaurant and hospitality 
industries along the corridor. 

− Troy or its business partners will design, print and install any vehicle wraps, decals 
or other visual elements including brochures and other information materials. 

− Troy or its partners will design and produce the shuttle service signs and provide 
them to SMART for installation (if desired). 

− Troy or its partners will design and implement any website, mobile app, social 
media, or other electronic information systems. 

Potential Collaborations and Enhancements 
SMART and the City of Troy will continue to meet, collaborate and partner as the shuttle 
is implemented and adjusted in the future.  There are a number of opportunities where 
Troy and partners can collaborate to enhance the service and make it more attractive to 
potential users.  SMART will be a willing participant, providing experience and knowledge 
of our use of these systems wherever helpful to the service.  These possibilities include: 

1. Mobile App.  An app could be developed and implemented to include many elements, 
including: 

− Real-time location of vehicles with next vehicle arrival times 

− Interactive corridor map with business/community information around stops 

− Shuttle information paired with reservation portals for hotel or restaurants 

− Wayfinding app assistance to support cross-corridor foot traffic 



PAGE 7 

2. Wayfinding Plan.  A effort for signage related to cross-corridor traffic could be tested 
out first around shuttle stops where a ‘captive’ audience is getting on/off the shuttle. 
 

3. Additional Crossings.  The success of this concept could be used in continued efforts 
by Troy and SMART to gain support and approval from MDOT for additional 
signalized crossings along the corridor. 

Potential Funding Methods (P3) 
− Economic development groups (business, chamber, hospitality, commerce) can 

build support and lend services (e.g. mobile app) 

− Businesses or groups can provide financial support to offset cost of running the 
service 

− Bus wraps can include corridor/business information 

− Maps, materials, and website can all include advertisements and/or business 
information 

Implementation 
SMART is ready to work with the City to discuss and revise this concept, as desired.  The 
City will need to take steps to identify and approve needed funding and systems in place, 
and also provide guidance on vehicle type desired. 

The timing for implementation is limited by the procurement and installation of signage, 
assuming the use of used 23’ vehicles available from SMART.  SMART will look to the City 
for its approval and direction moving forward. 



 

 

1 
 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 
 

 
 
Date:  October 20, 2016 
 
 
To:   Brian Kischnick, City Manager 
  
From:  MaryBeth Murz, Purchasing Manager 
  David Roberts, Fire Chief 
  Gary Mayer, Police Chief 
   
Subject: Standard Purchasing Resolution 8:  Best Value Award – Emergency Medical & First Responder 

Services (Introduced by David Roberts, Fire Chief and MaryBeth Murz, Purchasing Manager) 
 
 
Background 
Since 1991, The City of Troy has adopted a concept whereby Emergency Medical and First Responder Services 
is contracted to a third party provider.  The EMS provider takes on the responsibility of providing both first 
responder service, in the form of paramedic first responders (PFR), and ambulance service, in the form of 
paramedic advanced life support ambulances (ALS).  Associated responsibilities of hiring, training, and certifying 
paramedics, equipping and maintaining vehicles, etc., are borne by the contracted provider thereby alleviating the 
burden of these responsibilities from either the Fire Department or the Police Department.  The Police 
Department routinely responds along with EMS for scene security and required reporting, while the Fire 
Department responds for necessary rescue and extrication efforts.  This operational concept has proven 
successful for 25 years.  
 
Per the RFP specifications, a 60-day transition period is to occur between November 2, 2016, and December 31, 
2016, when the current EMS contract expires, in order to allow for the transfer of operations between service 
providers for a start date of January 1, 2017. The City Council meeting schedule requires that this item be brought 
before Council on this date to meet this required time frame. 
 
Purchasing 
• A Request for Proposal was issued and posted on the Michigan Inter-governmental Trade Network (MITN) 

website; www.mitn.info.  96 companies were notified of this bid opportunity. 
• September 29, 2016 a Pre-Proposal meeting was conducted.  The Request for Proposal document and the 

project timeline was reviewed.  Clarifications were discussed and questions answered which necessitated the 
issuance of an Addendum summarizing the meeting.  Five (5) companies attended the Pre-Proposal meeting 
as listed below: 

   Star EMS     Pontiac, MI 
   Alliance Mobile Health   Troy, MI 
   Superior Ambulance     Warren, MI 
   Beaumont Mobile Medicine   Troy, MI 
   Universal Macomb Ambulance Service Sterling Heights, MI 
 
• October 13, 2016 a bid opening was conducted and Proposals were received as required by City Charter and 

Code for Emergency Medical & First Responder Services.  Below is a summary of potential companies. 
 

http://www.mitn.info/
stewartc
Typewritten Text
I-05



 

 

2 
 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 
 

 
Purchasing (continued) 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
• (3) Proposal responses were received as detailed: 

 
   Superior Ambulance     Warren, MI 
   Alliance Mobile Health   Troy, MI 
   Beaumont Mobile Medicine   Troy, MI 

Star EMS     Pontiac, MI (No bid response) 
 

• Three (3) Committee Members reviewed and evaluated the proposals.  The Committee Members were as 
follows: 
 

o David Roberts, Fire Chief 
o Chuck Riesterer, Assistant Fire Chief 
o Keith Frye, Police Captain 

 
• Based on the detailed proposals and pricing structure, the committee unanimously recommended 

awarding the contract to Beaumont Mobile Medicine of Troy, MI.  The detailed bid tabulation is attached. 
• Superior Ambulance was not considered because the company charges for Advanced Life Support (ALS) 

Service, cannot perform on-site evidentiary blood draws, is not CAAS accredited, and their charge rates 
were high. 

• Beaumont Mobile Medicine (BMM), like Alliance Mobile Health, has a $0 cost to the City for ALS Service. 
• BMM, however, has the lowest Paramedic First Responder (PFR) Service hourly rate of $22.74. 
• Note: payable hours for PFR Service is anticipated and varies on an annual basis.  BMM’s anticipated 

payable hours are in alignment with what the City has historically experienced and paid. 
• A history for payable hours for PFR Service is listed below:  

 
Year Payable Hours 

2011 20,290 
2012 20,825 
2013 20,000 
2014 19,067 
2015 23,515 

 
Even though payable hours are continually monitored, hours do fluctuate in order to meet response times.  
For instance, traffic can affect this number of payable hours. 

Companies notified via MITN 96 
Troy Companies notified via MITN 3 
Troy Companies - Active email Notification 3 
Troy Companies - Active Free 0 
Companies that viewed the bid  11 
Troy Companies that viewed the bid 2 

MITN provides a resourceful online platform to streamline the 
procurement process, reduce costs, and make it easier and more 
transparent for vendors to do business with the City of Troy. 
Active MITN members with a current membership and paying annual 
dues receive automatic electronic notification which allows instant 
access to Bids, RFPS and Quote opportunities with the City.   
Active MITN non-paying members are responsible to monitor and 
check the MITN website for opportunities to do business with the City. 
Inactive MITN member status can occur when a company does not 
renew their account upon expiration.  Inactive members cannot be 
notified of solicitations or access any bid information. 

 



 

 

3 
 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 
 

 
Purchasing (continued) 

 
• BMM also has a lower rate for on-site evidentiary blood draws, Advanced Practice Paramedics for in-

home patient follow-up, CAAS accreditation, additional accreditations for dispatch and paramedic training, 
and the lowest ambulance user charge rates to patients in comparison. 

• Beaumont Mobile Medicine is part of Beaumont Health which was formed in 2014 by three health care 
systems; Beaumont Health System, Botsford Hospital and Oakwood Health who came together as 
Michigan’s Health Care System.  As part of the formation of Beaumont Health, each legacy health system 
combined their existing medical transportation companies (Community EMS, HealthLink Medical 
Transportation, and Beaumont Medical Transportation) to form Beaumont Mobile Medicine a 501(c)3 
company. 

• For over 34 years these three legacy EMS companies have provided quality driven EMS services through 
innovation, technologies, and measuring best practice clinical and operational metrics. 

 
Financial 
$530,930.00 has been allocated for First Responder Services in the 2016-2017 budget.  The estimated cost 
based on “Anticipated” Hours for Beaumont Mobile Medicine to provide Paramedic First Responder Service will 
be approximately $498,006.00 per year which is predicated on 21,900 hours x the low bid hourly rate of $22.74. 
 
Recommendation 
City management recommends awarding a three (3) year contract with the option to renew annually for three (3) 
additional years to provide Emergency Medical & First Responder Services for the City of Troy to the highest 
rated proposer, Beaumont Mobile Medicine of Troy, MI for a total estimated annual amount of $498,006.00 
predicated on the anticipated payable hours at prices contained in the bid tabulation opened October 13, 2016.  
The award is contingent upon the Firm’s submission of properly executed bid documents including insurance 
certificates and all specified requirements. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G:\Bid Award 16-17 EMS Services_Memo 



Opening Date: 10/13/2016 CITY OF TROY RFP-COT 16-33
Date Reviewed: 10/19/2016 BID TABULATION Pg. 1 of 2

ENERGENCY MEDICAL AND FIRST RESPONDER SERVICES

VENDOR NAME:
CITY:

ADVANCED LIFE SUPPORT AMBULANCE SERVICE:
RESPONSE TIME

PARAMEDIC FIRST RESPONDER SERVICE:

TYPE OF UNIT

Year            
2016-2017

Anticipated 
Payable 
Hours

Year               
2016-2017

Anticipated 
Payable 
Hours

Year                        
2016-2017

/hr. $0/hr. $0/hr. $0/hr.

$25.00/hr. 21,216 $23.10/hr. 21,900 $22.74/hr.

$516,000.00 $490,089.60 $498,006.00

EVIDENTIARY BLOOD DRAW:

ACCREDITATION:

CHARGE SCHEDULE:
Advanced Life Support 1 Emergent
Advanced Life Support 1 Non-Emergent
Advanced Life Support 2 Emergent
Basic Life Support - Emergent
Basic Life Support - Non-Emergent
Specialty Care Transport

Mileage
Paramedic Response w/ ALS treatment 
no transport 200.00$                               547.00$                                  No Charge
Paramedic Response & Assessment - 
(non-transport) 100.00$                               177.00$                                  No Charge

CAAS (Ambulance)
ACE (Dispatch)

CAAHEP (Paramedic School)

Est. Amount - "Anticipated"  Hrs:

20,640

Other Type- First Responder Vehicle 

765.00$                                 

1,200.00$                              
450.00$                                 
550.00$                                 

692.00$                                  600.00$                                   

830.00$                                   
400.00$                                   
500.00$                                   

13.00$                                     

PROPOSAL:  EMERGENCY MEDICAL & FIRST RESPONDER SERVICES FOR THE TROY FIRE & POLICE 
DEPARTMENT.

8 Minutes- Required 

Year 2016-2017

$44,230.00/month

Year 2016-2017

12.50$                                    13.16$                                    

$0/month

1,000.00$                              
650.00$                                 

965.00$                                  
547.00$                                  
547.00$                                  
827.00$                                  
692.00$                                  

CAAS - No

Does not offer at this time.

800.00$                                   
455.00$                                   

$130.00 $85.00

CAAS (Ambulance)

6 Minutes 

Ambulance 

$53,076.00/month

Anticipated 
Payable 
Hours

Warren, MI

Alliance Mobile Health

Troy, MI

Beaumont Mobile 
Medicine
Troy, MI

Superior Ambulance 
Service

Year 2016-2017

$0/month                         

$68,000.00/month

$0/month



CITY OF TROY RFP-COT 16-33
BID TABULATION Pg. 2 of 2
ENERGENCY MEDICAL AND FIRST RESPONDER SERVICES

VENDOR NAME:
CITY:

Extension of Award to other

Municipalities: Y or N

References: Y or N 

Acknowledgement: Y or N 

Payment Terms: Y or N 

Can Meet Insurance:    
Y or N

Hold Harmless Clause: 
Y or N

Forms: Y or N

No Bid Response: Star EMS.
ATTEST: ______________________________
David Roberts MaryBeth Murz, 
Keith Frye Purchasing Manager 
Susan Riesterer

G:\Bid Tabs 16-17 RFp-COT 16-33 Emergency Medical and First Responder Svcs. 

Warren, MI Troy, MI Troy, MI
Superior Ambulance Alliance Mobile Health Beaumont Mobile 

Yes

Yes

No

Yes

Yes

No

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Monthly

Yes

Yes
Yes

Yes
Yes

Yes

Monthly Monthly



CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL JOINT MEETING MINUTES-Draft October 10, 2016 
 

- 1 - 

A. CALL TO ORDER: 
 
A Special Joint Meeting of the Troy City Council and the Troy Chamber of Commerce was held 
on Monday, October 10, 2016, at City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver Rd.  Mayor Slater called the 
meeting to order at 6:02 PM. 
 

B. ROLL CALL: 
a) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

C. DISCUSSION ITEMS:  
C-1 Welcome and Introductions 
 
Mayor Slater opened the meeting and thanked the members of City Council and the Troy 
School Board for attending tonight. He turned the meeting over the President Philippart. 
 
President Philippart thanked the City for hosting the joint meeting tonight. She asked the 
members present to each introduce themselves. 
 
C-2 District’s Mission/Vision/Values/Goals 
 
President Philippart introduced Dr. Rich Machesky. Dr Machesky introduced the Troy School 
District staff members present. He then discussed a presentation of the District’s brand, 
mission, vision, values and goals. 
 
 
C-3 Property Sale 
 
Dr. Machesky reviewed each piece of property that the Troy School District currently owns and 
is planning to sell. He explained the preliminary investigation by the Board to use some of the 
proceeds from the sale of property to invest in an early childhood education center. 
 
C-4 Bond Projects 
 

City Council Members Troy School Board 
Mayor Dane Slater Nancy Philippart, Board President 
Edna Abrahim Ida Edmunds 
Ethan Baker Paula Fleming 
Dave Henderson Gary Hauff 
Ellen Hodorek Todd Miletti 
Paul McCown Karl Schmidt, Board Vice-President 
Mayor Pro Tem Ed Pennington Wendy Underwood - Absent 
  

stewartc
Typewritten Text
J-02a



CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL JOINT MEETING MINUTES-Draft October 10, 2016 
 

- 2 - 

Dr. Machesky discussed the latest bond that was passed by the voters in Troy. He thanked all 
who supported the Troy School District by voting for the bond. Dr. Machesky shared some of 
the specific projects that were completed using Series I bond money. He explained that Series 
II will be sold in spring, 2017 with more projects coming this summer. 
 
C-5 Other 
 
Council Member Baker asked about the capacity of the schools and if we are at risk of being 
over capacity. Dr. Machesky answered that elementary numbers have remained flat. He said 
that creating the early childhood development center will alleviate some of the capacity of the 
elementary schools.  
 
Mr. Schmidt thanked the Board and Council for meeting tonight. Mr. Schmidt exited the 
meeting. 
 
Council Member Abrahim asked where the early childhood center would be located. Dr. 
Machesky answered that the Board is not that far in the planning process. 
 
Mrs. Edmunds thanked the Police Department for their handling of the issue with clowns. 
 
Council Member Hodorek said she appreciates the collaboration between the Board and the 
City Council. She thanked Dr. Machesky for his presentation tonight. 
 
Mayor Slater asked the School District to promote the City of Troy’s Frightful 5k fun run on 
October 23, 2016. 
 
Mr. Hauff commented that there is a lot of enthusiasm within the Troy School Board and he 
encourages everyone to watch meetings and get involved. 
 
Council Member Henderson commented that he appreciates the School District for the quality 
of the education as well as their involvement in the community. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Pennington thanked the School Board for participating in the meeting tonight. 
 
Council Member McCown commented that he appreciates the School Board for all they’ve done 
as well as for their fiscal responsibility. 
 
Mr. Kischnick thanked Dr. Machesky for his collaboration efforts with the City. 
 
Mayor Slater commented that he is grateful for Dr. Machesky’s participation in the Troy 
Community Foundation along with the other events that he participates in. 
 

D. PUBLIC COMMENT: 
 

E. ADJOURNMENT: 

The Meeting ADJOURNED at 6:50 PM. 



CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL JOINT MEETING MINUTES-Draft October 10, 2016 
 

- 3 - 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Mayor Dane Slater 
 
 
 
M. Aileen Dickson, MMC 
City Clerk 



CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL JOINT MEETING MINUTES-Draft October 10, 2016 
 

- 4 - 

PUBLIC COMMENT: 
In accordance with the Rules of Procedure for the City Council, Article 17 – Members of 
the Public and Visitors: 
Any person not a member of the City Council may address the Council with recognition of the 
Chair, after clearly stating the nature of his/her inquiry or comment. City Council requests that if 
you do have a question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you are 
encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved satisfactorily, to 
the Mayor and Council. 
• Petitioners shall be given a fifteen (15) minute presentation time that may be extended with 

the majority consent of City Council. 
• Any member of the public, not a petitioner of an item, shall be allowed to speak for up to three 

(3) minutes to address any Public Hearing item. 
• Any Troy resident or Troy business representative, not a petitioner of an item, shall be allowed 

to speak for up to three (3) minutes total to address Postponed, Regular Business, Consent 
Agenda or Study items or any other item on the Agenda as permitted under the Open 
Meetings Act during the Public Comment for Items On the Agenda from Troy Residents and 
Businesses portion of the Agenda. 

• Any Troy resident or Troy business representative, not a petitioner of an item, shall be allowed 
to speak for up to three (3) minutes to address any topic not on the Agenda as permitted 
under the Open Meetings Act during the Public Comment for Items Not on the Agenda from 
Troy Residents and Businesses portion of the Agenda. 

• Any member of the public who is not a Troy resident or Troy business representative shall be 
allowed to speak for up to three (3) minutes to address any topic on or not on the Agenda as 
permitted under the Open Meetings Act during the Comments for Items On or Not On the 
Agenda from Members of the Public Outside of Troy (Not Residents of Troy and Not From 
Troy Businesses) portion of the Agenda. 

• All members of the public who wish to address the Council at a meeting shall be allowed to 
speak only if they have signed up to speak within thirty minutes before or within fifteen 
minutes after the meeting’s start time. Signing up to speak requires each speaker provide his 
or her name and residency status (Troy resident, non-resident, or Troy business owner). If the 
speaker is addressing an Item (or Items) that appear on the pre-printed agenda, then the 
speaker shall also identify each such agenda item number(s) to be addressed. 

• City Council may waive the requirements of this section by a majority vote of the City Council 
members. 

• Agenda items that are related to topics where there is significant public input anticipated 
should initiate the scheduling of a Special meeting for that specific purpose. 

The following has been approved by Troy City Council as a statement of the rules of decorum for 
City Council meetings. The Mayor will also provide a verbal notification of these rules prior to 
Public Comment: 
 
The audience should be aware that all comments are to be directed to the Council rather than 
to City Administration or the audience. Anyone who wishes to address the Council is required to 
sign up to speak within thirty minutes before or within fifteen minutes of the start of the meeting. 
There are three Public Comment portions of the Agenda. For Items On the Agenda, Troy 
Residents and Business Owners can sign up to address Postponed, Regular Business, 
Consent Agenda, or Study items or any other item on the Agenda. Troy Residents and 



CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL JOINT MEETING MINUTES-Draft October 10, 2016 
 

- 5 - 

Business Owners can sign up to address all other topics under Items Not on the Agenda.  All 
Speakers who do not live in Troy or own a Troy business may sign up to speak during the 
Comments on Items On and Not On the Agenda from Members of the Public Outside of Troy. 
Also, there is a timer on the City Council table in front of the Mayor that turns yellow when there 
is one minute of speaker time remaining, and turns red when the speaker's time is up.    
In order to make the meeting more orderly and out of respect, please do not clap during the 
meeting, and please do not use expletives or make derogatory or disparaging comments about 
any one person or group.  If you do so, then there may be immediate consequences, including 
having the microphone turned off, being asked to leave the meeting, and/or the deletion of 
speaker comments for any re-broadcast of the meeting.  Speakers should also be careful to 
avoid saying anything that would subject them to civil liability, such as slander and defamation.  
 
Please avoid these consequences and voluntarily assist us in maintaining the decorum befitting 
this great City. 
 
  



CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL JOINT MEETING MINUTES-Draft October 10, 2016 
 

- 6 - 

 
2016 SCHEDULED SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 

October 24, 2016.......................... Joint Meeting–Troy City Council/Troy Planning Commission 
 
 
 

2016 SCHEDULED REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 
October 24, 2016.............................................................................................. Regular Meeting 
November 14, 2016 .......................................................................................... Regular Meeting 
November 21, 2016 .......................................................................................... Regular Meeting 
December 5, 2016 ............................................................................................ Regular Meeting 
December 19, 2016 .......................................................................................... Regular Meeting 

 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES-Draft October 10, 2016 
 

- 1 - 

Pastor Vince Messina from Woodside Bible Church performed the Invocation.  The Pledge of 
Allegiance to the Flag was given. 
 
A. CALL TO ORDER: 
 
A Regular Meeting of the Troy City Council was held on Monday, October 10, 2016, at City Hall, 
500 W. Big Beaver Rd.  Mayor Slater called the meeting to order at 7:30 PM. 
 
B. ROLL CALL: 
 

a) Mayor Dane Slater 
Edna Abrahim 
Ethan Baker 
Dave Henderson 
Ellen Hodorek  
Paul McCown 
Mayor Pro Tem Ed Pennington  

 

C. CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION AND SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS:  
C-1 Larysa Figol, Senior Right-of-Way Representative has been Named “2016 

Professional of the Year” by the International Right-of-Way Association (IRWA) 
Michigan Chapter 7 (Presented by:  Mayor Dane Slater) 

 
C-2 Proclamation to Celebrate Sandra J. Burgess and Burgess Strategic Marketing 

Services - 30 Years in Business in the City of Troy (Presented by:  Mayor Dane 
Slater) 

 

D. CARRYOVER ITEMS: 
D-1 No Carryover Items 
 

E. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
E-1 No Public Hearings 
 

F. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS ON THE AGENDA FROM TROY 
RESIDENTS AND BUSINESSES: 

 
G. CITY COUNCIL/CITY ADMINISTRATION RESPONSE/REPLY TO PUBLIC 

COMMENT: 
 

H. POSTPONED ITEMS: 

H-1 No Postponed Items  
 

stewartc
Typewritten Text
J-02b



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES-Draft October 10, 2016 
 

- 2 - 

I. REGULAR BUSINESS: 
I-1 Board and Committee Appointments: a) Mayoral Appointments – Downtown 

Development Authority; b) City Council Appointments – Zoning Board of Appeals 
 
a) Mayoral Appointments:   
 
Resolution #2016-10-169 
Moved by Slater 
Seconded by Henderson 
 
RESOLVED, That the Mayor of the City of Troy hereby APPOINTS the following nominated 
person(s) to serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated:   
 

Downtown Development Authority 
Appointed by Mayor 
13 Regular Members 

4 Year Term 
 
Term Expires:  9/30/2020 Dennis Bostick In District 
 Term currently held by: Dennis Bostick 
 
Term Expires:  9/30/2020 Rebecca Chamberlain-Creanga In District 
 Term currently held by: Arkan Jonna 
 
Term Expires:  9/30/2020 Laurence Keisling At Large 
 Term currently held by: Laurence Keisling 
 
Term Expires:  9/30/2020 Alan Kiriluk In District 
 Term currently held by: Alan Kiriluk 

 
Yes: All-7 
No: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
b) City Council Appointments:   
 
Resolution #2016-10-170 
Moved by Pennington 
Seconded by Baker 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPOINTS the following nominated person(s) to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 

Zoning Board of Appeals 
Appointed by Council 

7 Regular Members; 2 Alternates 
3 Year Term 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES-Draft October 10, 2016 
 

- 3 - 

 
Unexpired Term Expiring:  4/30/2019 Dan Agauas 
 Term currently held by: Vacancy – Paul McCown 

appointed full member. 
 
Yes: All-7 
No: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
I-2 Board and Committee Nominations: a) Mayoral Nominations – None; b) City Council 

Nominations – Animal Control Appeal Board, Parks & Recreation Board 
 
a) Mayoral Nominations:   

 
City Council took no action on this item. 
 
b) City Council Nominations:  
 
Resolution #2016-10-171 
Moved by Pennington 
Seconded by Baker 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby FORWARDS the following nominated person(s) to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated to the next Regular City Council Meeting for 
action: 
 

Animal Control Appeal Board 
Appointed by Council 
5 Regular Members 

3 Year Term 
 
Nominations to the Animal Control Appeal Board: 
 
Term Expires:  9/30/2019 Patrick Carolan 
 Term currently held by: Patrick Carolan 
 

 
Parks and Recreation Board 

Appointed by Council 
7 Regular Members and 1 Troy School District Member 

Regular Member: 3 Year Term  /  Troy School Board Member: 1 Year Term 
 
 
Nominations to the Parks and Recreation Board: 
 
Term Expires:  9/30/2019 Julia (Judy) Baker 
 Term currently held by: Julia (Judy) Baker 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES-Draft October 10, 2016 
 

- 4 - 

Term Expires:  9/30/2019 Jeffrey L. Stewart 
 Term currently held by: Jeffrey L. Stewart 
 
Term Expires:  9/30/2019 Steve Toth 
 Term currently held by: Steve Toth 
 

 
Yes: All-7 
No: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
I-3 No Closed Session Requested 
 
I-4 Budget Amendment and Bid Waiver – Police Department Perimeter Fencing 

(Introduced by:  Chief Gary Mayer) 
 
Resolution #2016-10-172 
Moved by Baker 
Seconded by Abrahim 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES City Management to transfer 
from the General Fund to the Capital Projects Fund the amount of $280,000 along with the 
associated expenditure to the Capital Projects Fund for Police Department Perimeter Fencing. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a contract to Industrial 
Fence & Landscaping, Inc., of Detroit, MI for an estimated cost of $254,560 with a 10% 
contingency for an estimated total of $280,000 for the installation of perimeter fencing around 
the Police Department parking lot, five (5) vehicle access gates with card access controls (3 
inbound gates and 2 outbound gates), and three (3) pedestrian access gates (2 pedestrian 
gates include card access control wiring). 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon the contractor’s 
submission of properly executed bid and contract documents, including bonds, insurance 
certificates and all other specified requirements. 
 
Yes: All-7 
No: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

J. CONSENT AGENDA: 
J-1a Approval of “J” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Resolution #2016-10-173-J-1a 
Moved by Henderson 
Seconded by Baker 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES-Draft October 10, 2016 
 

- 5 - 

 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES all items on the Consent Agenda as 
presented and including the correction to the time in item J-6. 
 
Yes: All-7 
No: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
J-1b  Address of “J” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council  
 
J-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 
 
Resolution #2016-10-173-J-2 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the following Minutes as submitted: 
 
a) City Council Minutes-Draft – September 26, 2016 
 
J-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations:   
 
Resolution #2016-10-173-J-3 
 
a) Burgess Strategic Marketing Services – 30 Years in Business in the City of Troy 
 
J-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions:   
 
a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2:  Low Bidder Meeting Specifications – 2016 

Street Planting 
 
Resolution #2016-10-173-J-4a 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a contract to provide and install ball and 
burlap or container grown trees to Marine City Nursery of Marine City, Michigan, low bidder 
meeting specifications as detailed in the bid tabulation, not to exceed budgetary limitations; 
opened September 15, 2016, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of 
this meeting, with the contract expiring June 30, 2017.  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon the contractor’s 
submission of properly executed bid and contract documents, including bonds, insurance 
certificates and all other specified requirements.  
 
b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4:  Cooperative Contract Award – Michigan 

Intergovernmental Trade Network (MITN) – Flexible Chain Cutters 
 
Resolution #2016-10-173-J-4b 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES a contract to purchase (2) USB 
Flexible Chain Cutters for the Public Works Water & Sewer Division from Southeastern 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES-Draft October 10, 2016 
 

- 6 - 

Equipment Co., Inc, of Novi, Michigan an authorized USB Distributor as per the Michigan 
Intergovernmental Trade Network (MITN) Cooperative Bid; Contract # RFP-RH-15-034 and as 
per the quotations for an estimated total cost of $15,683.60; a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting.  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon the contractor’s 
submission of properly executed bid and contract documents, including Insurance Certificates, 
and all other specified requirements. 
 
J-5 Suggested Resolution to Schedule a Study Meeting with the Troy Family Daze 

Committee on Monday, November 14, 2016 at 6:00 PM for the Purpose of Discussing 
Troy Family Daze 

 
Resolution #2016-10-173-J-5 
 
RESOLVED, That a Study Meeting is SCHEDULED for the Troy City Council and the Troy 
Family Daze Committee for the purpose of discussing Troy Family Daze on Monday, November 
14, 2016 at 6:00 PM in the City Council Boardroom, 500 W. Big Beaver Road, Troy, MI  48084. 
 
J-6 Suggested Resolution to Schedule a Joint Study Meeting with the Troy Downtown 

Development Authority on Tuesday, October 25, 2016, at 5:00 PM for the Purpose of 
Discussing Quality Development Initiative (QDI), Redevelopment Proposal of 888 W. 
Big Beaver Road and the Troy Town Center Concept Plan 

 
Resolution #2016-10-173-J-6 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, That a Joint Study Meeting is SCHEDULED between the Troy City Council 
and the Troy Downtown Development Authority (TDDA) for the purpose of discussing Quality 
Development Initiative (QDI), redevelopment proposal for 888 W. Big Beaver Road and the 
Troy Town Center Concept Plan on Tuesday, October 25, 2016 at 5:00 PM in the City Council 
Boardroom, 500 W. Big Beaver Road, Troy, MI  48084. 
 
J-7 Traffic Committee Recommendations and Minutes – September 21, 2016 
 
Resolution #2016-10-173-J-7 
 
3.  Request for Traffic Control – Mayflower at Aster 
 

RESOLVED, That the intersection of Mayflower at Aster be MODIFIED from NO traffic control 
to a YIELD sign on the Aster Drive southbound approach to the intersection.   

 
4.  Request for Traffic Control – Mayflower at Bridle Path 
 

RESOLVED, That NO CHANGE be made at the intersection of Mayflower at Bridle Path. 
 
5.  Request for Traffic Control – Calvert at Chapel 
 

RESOLVED, That the existing YIELD signs on Calvert at Chapel be REPLACED with 
STOP signs.   



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES-Draft October 10, 2016 
 

- 7 - 

 
J-8 2017 Annual Permit for Work on State Trunkline Right-of-Way 
 
Resolution #2016-10-173-J-8 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the application for the 2017 Annual 
Permit for Work on State Trunkline right-of-way.  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council APPROVES the Performance Resolution 
for Governmental Agencies as required by the Michigan Department of Transportation.  
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council AUTHORIZES the City Manager, Public 
Works Director and City Engineer to apply to the Michigan Department of Transportation for the 
necessary permit to work within State Highway Right-of-Way on behalf of the City.    
 
J-9 Police Department Promotional Testing Services 
 
Resolution #2016-10-173-J-9 
 
WHEREAS, EMPCO, Inc. has been providing testing and hiring services to the City’s Fire 
Department for 25 years; and has provided this service to several other surrounding 
municipalities (Resolution #2011-11-261); and, 
 
WHEREAS, EMPCO, Inc. meets departmental needs and complies with Act 78 Commission 
requirements, including the requirements to be fair and impartial; and, 
 
WHEREAS, The Police Department is reporting the occurrence of two (2) promotional testing 
services that took place in the month of August prior to City Council approval; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That City Council WAIVES the bid process and 
AUTHORIZES payment for Professional Services (Police Promotional Testing) from EMPCO, 
Inc. of Troy, MI in the amount of $16,719.58. 
 
J-10 Request for Acceptance of a Permanent Easement from HMB Development Inc. – 

Sidwell #88-20-27-429-042 
 
Resolution #2016-10-173-J-10 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS the permanent easement for storm  
sewers and surface drainage, from HMB Development, Inc., owner of the property having  
Sidwell #88-20-27-429-042. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That City Administration is hereby DIRECTED to record the 
permanent easement with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
J-11 Request for Acceptance of a Permanent Easement from Bethesda Romanian 

Pentecostal Church – Forest Run Site Condo – Sidwell #88-20-12-351-037 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES-Draft October 10, 2016 
 

- 8 - 

Resolution #2016-10-173-J-11 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS a permanent easement for storm sewer 
from Bethesda Romanian Pentecostal Church, owner of the property having Sidwell #88-20-12-
351-037. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That City Administration is hereby DIRECTED to record the 
permanent easement with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
J-12 Request for Acceptance of a Warranty Deed and Two Permanent Easements from 

GFA Harmony Developers LLC – West Oak III Site Condo – Sidwell #88-20-23-401-
018 and 019 

 
Resolution #2016-10-173-J-12 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS a warranty deed and two permanent 
easements for public utilities, and storm sewer & surface drainage from GFA Harmony 
Developers, LLC, owner of a portion of the properties having Sidwell #88-20-23-401-018 and 
019. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That City Administration is hereby DIRECTED to record the 
warranty deed and two permanent easements with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, 
copies of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

K. MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 
K-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:   
a) October 24, 2016 – Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment File No ZOTA 249 – Enhanced 

Cluster Option  
 
K-2 Memorandums (Items submitted to City Council that may require consideration at 
 some future point in time):  None Submitted 
 

L. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA FROM TROY 
RESIDENTS AND BUSINESSES: 

M. CITY COUNCIL/CITY ADMINISTRATION RESPONSE/REPLY TO PUBLIC 
COMMENT: 

N. COUNCIL REFERRALS:  
Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City Council Members for 
Placement on the Agenda 

N-1  No Council Referrals Submitted 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES-Draft October 10, 2016 
 

- 9 - 

O. COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
O-1  Council Comments  
 
Council Member Hodorek announced the upcoming Troy Community Coalition Celebrity Night 
Dinner at the San Marino Club, October 20, 2016 at 6:00 PM. Tickets are available at the door 
or call 248-823-5088 for more information and how to purchase tickets. She said that donations 
are always appreciated, even if not attending the dinner. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Pennington announced the first annual City of Troy Frightful 5k and 1k Family 
Fun Run. Call City Hall for more information. 
 
Council Member Henderson thanked the Police Department for their proactive response to the 
scary clown incidents in Troy. He commended Sgt. Lehmann for her handling of the clown 
incidents on social media. 
 
Council Member McCown commented on October 10th being Mental Health Awareness Day 
and October being Mental Health Awareness Month. 
 
Council Member Baker commented that tomorrow, October 11th is the last day to register to 
vote in the November 8th Presidential Election. 
 
Mayor Slater congratulated City Attorney Lori Grigg Bluhm on her appointment to the Board of 
Directors of the International Municipal Lawyers Association. 
 

P. REPORTS: 
P-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:   
a) Election Commission-Final – June 23, 2016  
b) Building Code Board of Appeals-Final – September 7, 2016 
c) Planning Commission-Final – September 13, 2016 
d) Election Commission-Draft – September 29, 2016  

Noted and Filed 
 

P-2 Department Reports:   
a) Building Department Activity Report – September, 2016 
b) September, 2016 Memo on Reference Information for Liquor License Types 
c) Letter of Engagement from Rehman for the City of Troy for the Year Ended June 30, 2016 
d) 2016 Third Quarter Litigation Report  

Noted and Filed 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES-Draft October 10, 2016 
 

- 10 - 

P-3 Letters of Appreciation:   
a) To Troy Fire Department from Mary Miller Nichols 
b) To Chief Mayer from Jean Backlund Regarding Assistance by Troy Officers at an 

Accident 
c) To Troy Police Department from MaryFrances Bertolino Regarding Coffee with a Cop 
d) To Chief Mayer from the Tocco Family Regarding Officer Assistance for a Situation with 

their Family 
e) To Chief Mayer from Richard Torongeau, Beverly Hills Director of Public Safety, 

Regarding Troy Police Officers Assistance with a Case 
f) To Troy Police Department from Henrean Prater Regarding Officer Assistance    

Noted and Filed 
 
P-4 Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:  None Submitted 
 

Q. COMMENTS ON ITEMS ON OR NOT ON THE AGENDA FROM MEMBERS 
OF THE PUBLIC OUTSIDE OF TROY (NOT RESIDENTS OF TROY AND 
NOT FROM TROY BUSINESSES): 

R. CLOSED SESSION:  
R-1 No Closed Session  
 

S. ADJOURNMENT: 
 
The Meeting ADJOURNED at 8:13 PM. 

 
 
 

Mayor Dane Slater 
 
 
 
M. Aileen Dickson, MMC 
City Clerk 

 



 

 

1 
 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 
  

Date:  October 13, 2016 
 
To:   Brian Kischnick, City Manager 
  
From:  MaryBeth Murz, Purchasing Manager 
  Cindy Stewart, Community Affairs Director 
  Paul Evans, Zoning and Compliance Specialist 
  Kurt Bovensiep, Public Works Director 
     
Subject: Standard Purchasing Resolution 2:  Low Bidders Meeting Specifications – Snow Removal 

Services 
 
History 

• The Parks Division is responsible for the snow and ice removal on all municipal property, which includes 
parking lots, building entrances, and sidewalks 

o Locations include; City Hall, Community Center, Museum, Nature Center, Transit Center, Fire 
Stations, Police and Fire Training Center, Camp Ticonderoga 

o For the past 6 years this service has been contracted to allow the Parks Division employees to 
assist with snow and ice removal on major and local roads 

• The Streets and Drains Division is responsible for the snow and ice removal on all municipal owned 
sidewalks at detention/retention ponds, vacant property, median crossings, park property, and 
cemeteries 

o There are over 100 separate locations totaling 22 miles worth of sidewalk. 
o Sidewalks are cleared when accumulations exceed 2 inches 

• The Code Enforcement Division is responsible for clearing snow and ice from uncompliant private 
property owners abutting public sidewalks as Chapter 34.11 and 34.11.01 states 

o Code Enforcement only responds to those properties that have received specific complaints 
o Contractor charges and fees are invoiced to the property owner 

• The Community Affairs Division is responsible for administrating the Community Development Block 
Grant (CDBG) Home Chore Program 

o Qualified individuals are eligible for assistance with snow and ice removal from driveways and 
sidewalks 

o Approximately 90 homes are completed under this program 
o CDBG funds this operation 

• The Streets and Drains Division is responsible for the snow and ice removal on subdivision roads (local 
roads) when accumulations exceed 3 inches and continued below freezing conditions are predicted 

o Troy has over 265 miles of local roads 
o Objective is to clear all local roads within 24-48 hours after the snow stops 
o Contractors assist City of Troy crews in completing this objective 

 
Purchasing 
On September 22, 2016, a bid opening was conducted as required by City Charter and Code for seasonal 
requirements for Snow Removal Services with an option to renew for one (1) additional season.  The bid was 
posted on the Michigan Inter-governmental Trade Network (MITN) website; www.mitn.info and the bid was also 
sent to the Troy Chamber of Commerce.  Three (3) bid responses were received for City Owned Properties 
(Proposal A), two (2) bid responses were received for City Owned Sidewalks (Proposal B), two (2) bid responses 
were received for Code Enforcement (Proposal C), one (1) bid response was received for Home Chore (Proposal  

http://www.mitn.info/
stewartc
Typewritten Text
J-04a



 

 

2 
 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 
  

Purchasing (continued): 
D), and one (1) bid response was received for Local Roads (Proposal E).  Below is a detailed summary of potential 
vendors for the bid opportunity: 
 

Companies notified via MITN 249 
Troy Companies notified via MITN 29 
Troy Companies - Active email Notification 7 
Troy Companies - Active Free 2 
Companies that viewed the bid  29 
Troy Companies that viewed the bid 7 
 

After reviewing the bid responses, Advanced Landscape & Builders Supply Co. of Clawson Michigan was the low 
bidder meeting specifications for Proposal A when taking into consideration salt prices and usage amounts, Casar 
Management, LLC., of St. Clair Shores, Michigan was the low bidder meeting specifications for Proposals B, 
Xpert Lawn and Snow of Ferndale, Michigan was the low bidder meeting specifications for Proposals C and D, 
and it was determined that Casar Management, LLC., of St. Clair Shores, Michigan did not meet the necessary 
experience of clearing local roads to be considered for Proposal E.  Proposals C and D will be re-bid due to a low 
bid response and unfavorable references. 
 
Three different vendors were solicited to provide quotes for the necessary equipment to provide Emergency Snow 
Removal Services on Local Roads.  Florence Cement Company of Shelby Township submitted the lowest quote 
for Front End loader with a 5-8 yard capacity, Pickup with 8-foot plow, and Road Grader with Minimum Size of 6 
Wheels 20,000 GVW Grader.  DiPonio Contracting, Inc. of Shelby Township Michigan submitted the lowest quote 
for Front End Loaders with a 4-5 yard capacity and Truck with 10-foot plow.  
 
Financial 
Funds are currently available for each service in the corresponding division: 

 Account Number  
Proposal A- City Owned Properties  
Civic Center 101.751.30.756.7802.070 
Fire Hall Operations 101.336.344.7802.050 
Police and Fire Training  101.264.261.7802.050 
Museum 101.804.807.7802.070 
Park Maintenance 101.751.30.770.7802.050 
Proposal B- City Owned Properties  
Park Maintenance 101.751.30.770.7802.070 
Street Sidewalks 101.447.24.511.7802.050 
Proposal E- Local Roads  
Streets Local Road Snow Removal 101.447.20.498.7802.070 
  
  
  
  

MITN provides a resourceful online platform to streamline the procurement 
process, reduce costs, and make it easier and more transparent for vendors 
to do business with the City of Troy. 
Active MITN members with a current membership and paying annual dues 
receive automatic electronic notification which allows instant access to Bids, 
RFPS and Quote opportunities with the City.   
Active MITN non-paying members are responsible to monitor and check 
the MITN website for opportunities to do business with the City. 
Inactive MITN member status can occur when a company does not renew 
their account upon expiration.  Inactive members cannot be notified of 

      

 
 



 

 

3 
 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 
  

Recommendation 
City management recommends awarding a contract to provide seasonal requirements with an option to renew 
for one (1) additional season to Advanced Landscape & Builders Supply Co. of Clawson Michigan for Proposal 
A, Casar Management, LLC., of St. Clair Shores, Michigan for Proposals B, DiPonio Contracting, Inc. of Shelby 
Township Michigan for Front End Loader with 4-5 yard capacities and Truck with 10 foot Snowplow in Proposal 
E, Florence Cement Company of Shelby Township for Front End Loader with 8-5 yard capacity, Truck with 8” 
Snowplow and 20,000 GVW Road Grader in Proposal E, at prices detailed and contained in the attached bid 
tabulation and quote tabulation.  In addition, City management is recommending the approval to allow city 
administration to extend the pricing established in Proposal E to other vendors for emergency conditions of 
snow and ice removal. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Opening Date -- 09/22/2016 CITY OF TROY
Date Reviewed -- 09/23/2016 BID TABULATION

SNOW REMOVAL SERVICES

VENDOR NAME:

Proposal (A):  City Owned Properties - Parking Lots, Building Entrances and Sidewalks 

Item # Dedicated COST
Parking Lots 

1 5-10 Yd Capacity Truck w/Salting Capabilities 2 85.00$        /Hr 2 95.00$    

2 Front End Loader - 5 yd Capacity w/Snow Pusher 1 110.00$      /Hr NO BID

3 Front End Loader - 3 yd Capacity w/Snow Pusher 1 110.00$      /Hr 2 118.00$  

4 Skid Steer with Snow Pusher 1 95.00$        /Hr 1 98.00$    

5 Pickup with 8 ft Blade 8 75.00$        /Hr 10 80.00$    

6 Truck with 10 ft Snowplow 1 85.00$        /Hr 2 95.00$    

7 Parking Lot Salt 110.00$      /Ton 110.00$  

Sidewalks:  
8 Utility Vehicle with 5' Snow Plow 2 50.00$        /Hr 1 55.00$    /Hr

9 Utility Vehicle with Salt Spreader 2 50.00$        /Hr 1 55.00$    /Hr

10 Utility Vehicle w/5' Snow Plow & Salt Spreader 2 50.00$        /Hr 1 55.00$    /Hr

11 Utility Tractor Mounted Snow Blower 1 50.00$        /Hr NO BID /Hr

12 Walk-Behind Snow Blower 5 35.00$        /Hr 8 37.50$    /Hr

13 Snow Shovel and Operator 8 35.00$        /Hr 8 35.00$    /Hr

14 Walk-Behind Salt Spreader with Operator 8 35.00$        /Hr 8 35.00$    /Hr

15 Sidewalk Salt Snow & Ice Melter 25.00$        50lb 15.50$    50lb 

ESTIMATED GRAND TOTAL - PROPOSAL A: 1,000.00$   No Bid 884.00$  

Proposal (B):  City Owned Properties - Sidewalks (Various locations within the City of Troy) 
Sidewalk - Sidewalk - 

Item Deicing Deicing 
1 Less than One (1) inch or Icy Conditions 0.12$                    0.03$                       

2 Three (3) inches to Six (6) inches 0.12$                    0.12$          0.03$                       0.13$      /LF.
3 Greater than Six (6) inches 0.15$                    0.15$          0.03$                       0.20$      /LF

Item 
1 2.50$                    8.50$                    
2 Price for Snow / Ice Removal 24.00$                  Per Hour 37.50$                  Per Hour
3 Price for Salting per each Service Call 0.12$                    Per LF 0.05$                       Per LF

Proposal (D):  Snow Removal Services for the Home Chore Program 
Snow Removal Snow Removal/

Est # Service Call Service Call 

90 15.00$                  NO BID

Description 

Proposal (C):  Code Enforcement per Call Basis  

Snow Removal and/or Salting at Residential City of 
Troy Homes 5.00$                      NO BID

Type of Equipment 

Description 

Description Cost Cost 

Sidewalks - 
Plowing 

Xpert Lawn and Snow
Ferndale, MI

Sidewalks - 
Plowing 

Salting/
Service Call 

Per Property

Casar Management, LLC
St. Clair Shores, MI

Per Property

Service Call 

Dispatch Fee

ITB-COT 16-30
Page 1 of 4

Salting/



CITY OF TROY
BID TABULATION
SNOW REMOVAL SERVICES

VENDOR NAME:

# of Available # of Available
Pieces of Eqpt. Pieces of Eq

NO BID NO BID

3 135.00$  Hr

1 95.00$    Hr

8 95.00$    Hr

NO BID

2 125.00$  Hr

Proposal A: Y/N
Date

Proposal B:  Y/N
Date

Can Meet 
Cannot Meet 

PAYMENT TERMS:  

ALL OR NONE AWARD Y/N 

EXCEPTIONS:  

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:       Signed     Y/N

VENDOR QUESTIONNAIRE:  Y/N 

` Legal Status Y/N
Non-Collusion Y/N
Indemnification Y/N
Sole Proprietor Y/N
"Iran Linked" Y/N

ATTEST:
Susan Riesterer
Kurt Bovensiep
Enna A. Bachelor

MaryBeth Murz,
Purchasing Manager

G:\Purchasing\Bid Tabs 14-15\ITB-COT 16-30 Snow Removal.xls

N

     Other Size 

     20,000 GVW Grader 

Front End Loader:  Minimum Size 3 Yards 

Pick up with minimum 8 ft Blade (to assist loaders only) 

     Other Size 

     Other Size 

INSURANCE: 

FORMS:  

SITE VISITS:

Road Grader with Minimum Size of 6 Wheels 

Truck with 10 ft Snowplow 

     3 Yd Capacity 

Proposal (E):  Snow Removal Services - Local Roads Emergency Basis 

Type of Equipment 

     5 Yd Capacity 

Hourly Rate
Per Piece 

Hourly Rate
Per Piece

Xpert Lawn and Snow
Ferndale, MI

Y
9/19/2016

Y
9/19/2016

Y

NET 30

N

NO EXCEPTIONS

Y

Y

Y
Y
Y

Y

N

BLANK

N

2% NET 10

Casar Management, LLC
St. Clair Shores, MI

9/16/2016

Y

Y
Y
Y

Y

Y

ITB-COT 16-30
Page 2 of 4

Y

Y
9/16/2016

Y



Opening Date: 9/22/2016 CITY OF TROY
Date Reviewed: 9/23/2016 BID TABULATION

SNOW REMOVAL SERVICES

VENDOR NAME:

Proposal (A):  City Owned Properties - Parking Lots, Building Entrances and Sidewalks 

Item # Dedicated COST
Parking Lots 

1 5-10 Yd. Capacity Truck w/Salting Capabilities 2 90.00$           Hour

2 Front End Loader - 5 yd. Capacity w/Snow Pusher 1 120.00$         Hour

3 Front End Loader - 3 yd. Capacity w/Snow Pusher 2 120.00$         Hour

4 Skid Steer with Snow Pusher 1 100.00$         Hour

5 Pickup with 8 ft. Blade 6 75.00$           Hour

6 Truck with 10 ft. Snowplow 2 75.00$           Hour

7 Parking Lot Salt 60.00$           Ton

Sidewalks:  
8 Utility Vehicle with 5' Snow Plow 2 55.00$           Hour

9 Utility Vehicle with Salt Spreader 2 55.00$           Hour

10 Utility Vehicle w/5' Snow Plow & Salt Spreader 2 55.00$           Hour

11 Utility Tractor Mounted Snow Blower 1 55.00$           Hour

12 Walk-Behind Snow Blower 6 35.00$           Hour

13 Snow Shovel and Operator 10 35.00$           Hour

14 Walk-Behind Salt Spreader with Operator 10 35.00$           Hour

15 Sidewalk Salt:  To be supplied by the City of Troy 6.75$             50lb

ESTIMATED GRAND TOTAL - PROPOSAL A: 971.75$         

Proposal (B):  City Owned Properties - Sidewalks (Various locations within the City of Troy) 
Sidewalk - Sidewalk - 

Item Deicing Deicing 
1 Less than One (1) inch or Icy Conditions NO BID

2 Three (3) inches to Six (6) inches /LF

3 Greater than Six (6) inches /LF

Item 
1 NO BID
2 Price for Snow / Ice Removal Per Hour
3 Price for Salting per each Service Call Per Call Out

Proposal (D):  Snow Removal Services for the Home Chore Program 
Snow Removal Snow Removal/

Est # Service Call Service Call 

85 NO BID
Snow Removal and/or Salting at Residential City of 
Troy Homes 

Advanced Landscape & Builders 
Supply Co.
Clawson, MI

Type of Equipment 

Sidewalks - Sidewalks - 

Description Cost Cost 

Description Plowing 

Dispatch Fee Per Property

Service Call Service Call 
Salting/ Salting/

Description 

ITB-COT 14-33
Page 3 of 4

Plowing 

Proposal (C):  Code Enforcement per Call Basis  



CITY OF TROY
BID TABULATION
SNOW REMOVAL SERVICES

VENDOR NAME:

# of Available # of Available
Pieces of Eqpt. Pieces of Eq

NO BID

Proposal A: Y/N
Date

Proposal B:  Y/N
Date

Can Meet 
Cannot Meet 

PAYMENT TERMS:  

ALL OR NONE AWARD Y/N 

EXCEPTIONS:  

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:       Signed     Y/N

VENDOR QUESTIONNAIRE:  Y/N 

` Legal Status Y/N
Non-Collusion Y/N
Indemnification Y/N
Sole Proprietor Y/N
"Iran Linked" Y/N

N

Blank

FORMS:  
Y

SITE VISITS: Y

Clawson, MI
Proposal (E):  Snow Removal Services - Local Roads Emergency Basis 

Hourly Rate

     5 Yd. Capacity 

Type of Equipment Per Piece Per Piece
Front End Loader:  Minimum Size 3 Yards 

Hourly Rate

ITB-COT 14-33
Page 4 of 4

Advanced Landscape & Builders 
Supply Co.

     3 Yd. Capacity 

     Other Size 

     Other Size 

Pick up with minimum 8 ft. Blade (to assist loaders only) 

Road Grader with Minimum Size of 6 Wheels 

INSURANCE: 

Y

Y

Y

Y

     20,000 GVW Grader 

     Other Size 

Truck with 10 ft. Snowplow 

N

Y

Y

Net 30

Blank

Several occasions
Blank



 
CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
 
 
Date:         October 10, 2016 
 
To:   Brian Kischnick, City Manager     
   
From:  Aileen Dickson, City Clerk 
 
Subject: Request for Recognition as a Nonprofit Organization from Myasthenia Gravis 

Association, Inc. 
 
 
History 
 
Attached is a request from Richard J. Giba, President of Myasthenia Gravis Association, Inc., seeking 
recognition as a nonprofit organization for the purpose of obtaining a charitable gaming license for 
fundraising purposes.  
 
Financial 
 
There are no financial considerations associated with this item. 
 
Recommendation 
 
It has been City Management’s practice to support the approval of such requests. 
 
 
City Attorney’s Review as to Form and Legality 
 
There are no legal considerations associated with this item. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

stewartc
Typewritten Text
J-05



























































































































Page 1 of 2 
 

 

 
October 18, 2016 
 
 
TO:    Brian Kischnick, City Manager 
 
FROM:  Mark F. Miller, Director of Economic and Community Development  
   Steven J. Vandette, City Engineer 
 
SUBJECT:            Former I-75/Rochester Mobil Gas Station, 2745 Rochester Road 
   Proposal to Complete Analytical Testing and Final Assessment/Closure Report  
    
    
History 
 
In the late 1990’s the City acquired through condemnation the former Mobil gas station property for 
the expansion of Rochester Road from I-75 to Torpey Street.  The road project has long since been 
completed and the station demolished, however; the MDEQ has advised us that a Closure Report 
has not been submitted for the November 16, 1999 release from a regulated underground storage 
tank (removed in 1999). This Report is required by the Natural Resources and Environmental 
Protection Act, Section 213 12a. The last submittal of a status report to the MDEQ by our 
environmental consultant, Innovative Environmental Solutions, was dated February 5, 2004.  The 
letter (attached) we received from the MDEQ concerning this matter is dated September 13, 2016. 
 
A letter from City Engineer Steve Vandette (attached) was sent to the MDEQ that committed the city 
to conduct all necessary actions and submit the information to the MDEQ.   
 
We contracted with Innovative Environmental Solutions, Inc. (IES) to perform the work since they did 
all of the previous field work, testing, mapping and reports from 1999 to 2004, under the direction of 
our former Fleet Operations Manager and City Attorney.  The Engineering Department will now be 
handing all environmental testing and reporting to the MDEQ for this site. 
 
The first proposal from IES (attached) in the amount of $5,935 and dated September 22, 2016 was 
accepted and approved by Steve Vandette.  During performance of the initial work IES discovered 
that several of the monitoring wells could not be found.  IES submitted a second proposal for 
additional work to install four (4) new monitoring wells, four (4) new soil borings and perform all 
necessary soil sampling and testing for the presence of leaded and unleaded gas indicators.  The 
laboratory reports from these wells and others will be evaluated against MDEQ Part 213 Tier 1 
Cleanup Criteria.  If the results meet the criteria and full delineation of the gas indicator chemicals is 
achieved, a Final Assessment/Closure Report will be prepared and submitted to the MDEQ. This 
submittal and acceptance by the MDEQ will officially close the file on this site. 
 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

stewartc
Typewritten Text
J-06



Page 2 of 2 
 

 
 
 
Purchasing 
 
Procurement of professional services does not require competitive bids.  Innovative Environmental 
Solutions, Inc. was contacted to submit proposals since they had previously done extensive work 
including mapping, sampling, laboratory testing, analysis and reports on the former I75/Rochester 
Mobil gas station site.  
 
The cost of the second proposal (attached) from IES dated October 18, 2016 is $9,850.  Since the 
combined total of the first and second proposal exceeds $10k, city administration is requesting city 
council approval for this work. 
 
Financial 
 
Funds for this work will be expended from the Engineering Department’s Consulting Engineering 
account.   
 
Recommendation 
 
It is recommended that City Council approve Proposal #PRB-16-229 (attached) from Innovative 
Environmental Solutions, Inc. dated October 18, 2016 in the amount of $9,850.00 for various 
environmental testing and reporting to the MDEQ concerning the former I75/Rochester Mobil gas 
station site.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G:\Environmental Issues\Misc. Reports\I75_Rochester_Mobil\To Council 21016.doc    



































 

 

1 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
Date:  October 19, 2016 
 
 
To:   Brian Kischnick, City Manager 
  
From:  Thomas Darling, Director of Financial Services 
  Lisa Burnham, Accounting Manager 
  Kurt Bovensiep, Director of Public Works 
  MaryBeth Murz, Purchasing Manager 
  Enna Bachelor, Buyer 
    
Subject: Amendment to City Ordinance Chapter 7 Item 9 “Declared Emergency” 
 

This is for informational purposes only, and absent any City Council objections, it is 
intend to be brought back as an action item on the next regular City Council meeting. 
 

 
 

Issue 
 
The purchasing review team for “Plan of Process & Education” (PPE) reviewed City Ordinance 
Chapter 7 Item 9. During our review we noted that the Ordinance could be further strengthened by 
direct tie-in to the City’s Emergency Operations Plan and clarification to address emergencies that 
threaten life, property, or the general public health, safety and welfare. 
 
Code 
 
City Ordinance Chapter 7 Item 9 
 
Interpretation 
 
Charter section 12.1 “Purchase and Sale of Property” paragraph 3 states that all sales or purchases 
in excess of ten thousand dollars shall be (a) approved by Council and (b) obtain competitive bids. 
The exception to these requirements is (1) Where Council has determined an emergency exists or (2) 
Council can waive the competitive bid process if they have determined that the public interest will be 
best served without obtaining sealed bids. 
 
Paragraph 5 allows the City Manager to make necessary purchases without sealed bid, prior council 
approval and in amounts in excess of $10,000 when an emergency is declared because of a natural 
disaster, civil disturbance or “similar calamity” is officially declared. 
 
Purchases in excess of $10,000 are further explained in greater detail in City Ordinance Chapter 7.3 
along with affirming the “Declared Emergency” purchases by the City Manager in City Ordinance 
Chapter 7.9 

stewartc
Typewritten Text
K-02a



 

 

2 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
The City has adopted an “Emergency Operations Plan” that allows for “activation” of the plan in 
section 4.(a)(i) by the first police or fire supervisor arriving on the scene. 
 
 
 
As demonstrated above the City Charter and the current City Ordinance do not address or provide 
financial guidance upon the activation of the Emergency Operations Plan. However from a practical 
standpoint, such an emergency may require immediate financial resources. 
 
During our review of Charter Section 12.1 paragraph 5 and comparing it to the current City Ordinance 
Chapter 7.9 regarding emergency purchases as referenced above, we noted that the City Manager 
may make necessary purchases when an emergency because of a natural disaster, civil disturbance 
or “similar calamity” is declared. The team concluded that further clarification of “similar calamity” is 
required as emergency conditions can occur that threaten life, property, or the general public health, 
safety and welfare that are outside of a natural disaster or civil disturbance. Examples would include 
emergency repairs to fire trucks or apparatus, a series of water main breaks or other emergency 
repairs that need to be addressed prior to the next scheduled Council meeting. 
 
Finally, the ordinance refers to the notification of emergency purchases to City Council at the next 
regularly scheduled meeting. The team concluded that because this is a timing requirement, the 
definition of when a “purchase” has occurred should be defined.  
 
Recommendation 
 
The team recommends modification to the City Ordinance Chapter 7 Item 9 as follows: 
 
7.9 Declared Emergency. Upon the activation of the City’s officially approved Emergency Operations 
Plan, the City Manager or the Designated Resource Officer is permitted to make emergency 
purchases without sealed bids, prior to Council approval and in excess of $10,000. For each 
purchase under the Emergency Operations Plan, the City Manager or Designated Resource Officer 
shall comply with any Federal or State emergency purchasing mandates and make every effort to 
secure commercially reasonable prices and retain receipts and any other required documentation to 
facilitate requests for reimbursement from State or Federal sources.  In those instances, and for those 
purchases exceeding the limitations provided in the Charter, the City Manager or his/her designee 
shall present the facts and circumstances concerning the purchase, and request that City Council 
affirm the purchase at the next regularly scheduled meeting following the delivery of the emergency 
purchase or initial rendering of emergency service.    
 
For all other sales or purchases exceeding $10,000, advance City Council approval is required. 
However, City Council has the option of passing a blanket type resolution granting the required 
advance approval for emergency purchases that do not require the activation of the Emergency 
Operations Plan, but are necessary because of an urgent and unforeseen situation that threatens life, 
property, or the general public health, safety and welfare, and immediate delivery or rendering of 
services is required.  If such a blanket resolution is adopted, the resolution shall require that in any 



 

 

3 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

such case, the City Manager or his/her designee shall present the facts and circumstances 
concerning the emergency purchase, and request that City Council affirm the purchase at the next 
regularly scheduled meeting following the delivery of the emergency purchase or initial rendering of 
emergency service.    Any such resolution should be reviewed and revisited any time there is a new 
member to City Council.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
City Attorney’s Review as to Form and Legality 
 
 
____________________________  ______________ 
Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney   Date 
 
 
 
 
Initials of Author, Preparer and File Location, for example:  BK/bt\AGENDA ITEMS\01.14.13 – Memo Name 



 

CITY OF TROY 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND 

CHAPTER 7 - CITY OF TROY ORDINANCE 
 
The City of Troy ordains: 
 
Section 1. Short Title 
 
This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as an amendment to Chapter 7- 
City of Troy Ordinance.  
 
Section 2. Amendment 
 
Section 9 shall be amended as follows:  
  
9. Declared Emergency. In the event of an officially declared emergency, the City 
Manager is permitted to make purchases without sealed bids, prior to Council 
approval and in excess of the limitations provided by the Charter. All purchases 
in excess of the limitations provided by the Charter, shall be reported to the 
Council at the next regularly scheduled meeting.  
 
9. Declared Emergency. Upon the activation of the City’s officially approved 
Emergency Operations Plan, the City Manager or the Designated Resource 
Officer is permitted to make emergency purchases without sealed bids, prior to 
Council approval and in excess of $10,000. For each purchase under the 
Emergency Operations Plan, the City Manager or Designated Resource Officer 
shall comply with any Federal or State emergency purchasing mandates and 
make every effort to secure commercially reasonable prices and retain receipts 
and any other required documentation to facilitate requests for reimbursement 
from State or Federal sources.  In those instances, and for those purchases 
exceeding the limitations provided in the Charter, the City Manager or his/her 
designee shall present the facts and circumstances concerning the purchase, 
and request that City Council affirm the purchase at the next regularly scheduled 
meeting following the delivery of the emergency purchase or initial rendering of 
emergency service.    
 
For all other sales or purchases exceeding $10,000, advance City Council 
approval is required. However, City Council has the option of passing a blanket 
type resolution granting the required advance approval for emergency purchases 
that do not require the activation of the Emergency Operations Plan, but are 
necessary because of an urgent and unforeseen situation that threatens life, 
property, or the general public health, safety and welfare, and immediate delivery 
or rendering of services is required.  If such a blanket resolution is adopted, the 
resolution shall require that in any such case, the City Manager or his/her 
designee shall present the facts and circumstances concerning the emergency 
purchase, and request that City Council affirm the purchase at the next regularly 



 

scheduled meeting following the delivery of the emergency purchase or initial 
rendering of emergency service.    Any such resolution should be reviewed and 
revisited any time there is a new member to City Council.   
 
Section 3. Repeal 
 
All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed only 
to the extent necessary to give this ordinance full force and effect. 
 
Section 4. Savings 
 
All proceedings pending, and all rights and liabilities existing, acquired or incurred, 
at the time this Ordinance takes effect, are hereby saved. Such proceedings may 
be consummated under and according to the ordinance in force at the time such 
proceedings were commenced. This ordinance shall not be construed to alter, 
affect, or abate any pending prosecution, or prevent prosecution hereafter instituted 
under any ordinance specifically or impliedly repealed or amended by this 
ordinance adopting this penal regulation, for offenses committed prior to the 
effective date of this ordinance; and new prosecutions may be instituted and all 
prosecutions pending at the effective date of this ordinance may be continued, for 
offenses committed prior to the effective date of this ordinance, under and in 
accordance with the provisions of any ordinance in force at the time of the 
commission of such offense. 
 
Section 5. Severability Clause 
 
Should any word, phrase, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance be held 
invalid or unconstitutional, the remaining provision of this ordinance shall remain in 
full force and effect. 
 
Section 6. Effective Date 
 
This Ordinance shall become effective ten (10) days from the date hereof or upon 
publication, whichever shall later occur. 
 
This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, 
Michigan, at a Regular Meeting of the City Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big 
Beaver, Troy, MI, on the 24th day of October, 2016. 
 
 
 
 

Dane Slater, Mayor 
 
 
 



 

M. Aileen Bittner, CMC, City Clerk 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT SEPTEMBER 27, 2016 
  
 
 

1 
 

Chair Edmunds called the Regular meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission to order at 
7:05 p.m. on September 27, 2016 in the Council Board Room of the Troy City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Ollie Apahidean Carlton M. Faison 
Karen Crusse Padma Kuppa 
Donald Edmunds 
Michael W. Hutson 
Tom Krent 
Phillip Sanzica 
John J. Tagle 
 
Also Present: 
R. Brent Savidant, Planning Director 
Ben Carlisle, Carlisle Wortman Associates 
Julie Quinlan Dufrane, Assistant City Attorney 
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Resolution # PC-2016-09-059 
Moved by: Sanzica 
Support by: Krent 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the Agenda as prepared. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
Absent: Faison, Kuppa 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
Resolution # PC-2016-09-060 
Moved by: Apahidean 
Support by: Tagle 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the minutes of the September 13, 2016 Regular meeting as 
submitted. 
 
Yes: Apahidean, Edmunds, Hutson, Krent, Sanzica, Tagle 
Absent: Faison, Kuppa 
Abstain: Crusse 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

stewartc
Typewritten Text
P-01a



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT SEPTEMBER 27, 2016 
  
 
 

2 
 

4. PUBLIC COMMENT – Items not on the Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 

5. ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS (ZBA) REPORT 
 
Mr. Sanzica gave a report on the September 20, 2016 Zoning Board of Appeals 
meeting. 
 

6. DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (DDA) REPORT 
 
There was no Downtown Development Authority meeting in September. 
 
Mr. Savidant reported on the status of the Civic Center site design. He announced the 
Civic Center site design would be the topic of discussion at the October 24, 2016 Joint 
City Council and Planning Commission meeting. 
 

7. PLANNING AND ZONING REPORT 
 
Mr. Savidant addressed upcoming Planning Commission agenda items. 

 
ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT 

 
8. PUBLIC HEARING - ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (File Number ZOTA 249) 

– Cluster Option 
 
A PowerPoint review of the proposed Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment was 
presented. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
There was discussion on: 
 (page 1) A. Intent. 6. – Revise language to reflect compatibility of design and use 

within cluster development and between neighboring properties. 
 (page 5) D. Open Space Requirements. 7. e. – Correct numbering sequence. 
 (page 6) E. Bulk Regulations and Regulatory Flexibility. 2. b. – Add language to 

reflect there shall be 20 feet from the front property line to the principal structure. 
 (page 8) H. Density Bonus. 3. Sustainable Design – Add text “and/or”. 
 (page 9) I. Standards for Review. 2. i. – Add “compatible” to architectural language. 
 Language relating to garage doors shall not be dominant feature. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT SEPTEMBER 27, 2016 
  
 
 

3 
 

Resolution # PC-2016-09-061 
Moved by: Hutson 
Support by: Crusse 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City Council 
that Article 10 of Chapter 39 of the Code of the City of Troy, which includes enhanced 
provisions related to the cluster option, be amended as printed on the proposed Zoning 
Ordinance Text Amendment, in addition to the comments listed by the Planning 
Commission during discussion. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
Absent: Faison, Kuppa 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
OTHER BUSINESS 

 
9. PUBLIC COMMENT – Items on Current Agenda 

 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 

 
10. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENT 

 
There were general Planning Commission comments. 
 

 
The Regular meeting of the Planning Commission adjourned at 7:50 p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
Donald Edmunds, Chair 
 
 
 
 
       
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2016 PC Minutes\Draft\2016 09 27 Regular Meeting_Draft.doc 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL SEPTEMBER 27, 2016 
  
 
 

1 
 

Chair Edmunds called the Regular meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission to order at 
7:05 p.m. on September 27, 2016 in the Council Board Room of the Troy City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Ollie Apahidean Carlton M. Faison 
Karen Crusse Padma Kuppa 
Donald Edmunds 
Michael W. Hutson 
Tom Krent 
Phillip Sanzica 
John J. Tagle 
 
Also Present: 
R. Brent Savidant, Planning Director 
Ben Carlisle, Carlisle Wortman Associates 
Julie Quinlan Dufrane, Assistant City Attorney 
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Resolution # PC-2016-09-059 
Moved by: Sanzica 
Support by: Krent 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the Agenda as prepared. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
Absent: Faison, Kuppa 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
Resolution # PC-2016-09-060 
Moved by: Apahidean 
Support by: Tagle 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the minutes of the September 13, 2016 Regular meeting as 
submitted. 
 
Yes: Apahidean, Edmunds, Hutson, Krent, Sanzica, Tagle 
Absent: Faison, Kuppa 
Abstain: Crusse 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

stewartc
Typewritten Text
P-01b



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL SEPTEMBER 27, 2016 
  
 
 

2 
 

4. PUBLIC COMMENT – Items not on the Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 

5. ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS (ZBA) REPORT 
 
Mr. Sanzica gave a report on the September 20, 2016 Zoning Board of Appeals 
meeting. 
 

6. DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (DDA) REPORT 
 
There was no Downtown Development Authority meeting in September. 
 
Mr. Savidant reported on the status of the Civic Center site design. He announced the 
Civic Center site design would be the topic of discussion at the October 24, 2016 Joint 
City Council and Planning Commission meeting. 
 

7. PLANNING AND ZONING REPORT 
 
Mr. Savidant addressed upcoming Planning Commission agenda items. 

 
ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT 

 
8. PUBLIC HEARING - ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (File Number ZOTA 249) 

– Cluster Option 
 
A PowerPoint review of the proposed Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment was 
presented. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
There was discussion on: 
 (page 1) A. Intent. 6. – Revise language to reflect compatibility of design and use 

within cluster development and between neighboring properties. 
 (page 5) D. Open Space Requirements. 7. e. – Correct numbering sequence. 
 (page 6) E. Bulk Regulations and Regulatory Flexibility. 2. b. – Add language to 

reflect there shall be 20 feet from the front property line to the principal structure. 
 (page 8) H. Density Bonus. 3. Sustainable Design – Add text “and/or”. 
 (page 9) I. Standards for Review. 2. i. – Add “compatible” to architectural language. 
 Language relating to garage doors shall not be dominant feature. 





BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT OCTOBER 5, 2016 
 
 

1 
 

Chair Dziurman called the Regular meeting of the Building Code Board of Appeals to order at 
3:00 p.m. on October 5, 2016 in the Council Board Room of the Troy City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Members Present 
Theodore Dziurman, Chair 
Gary Abitheira 
Amanda Anderson 
Andrew Schuster 
 
Members Absent 
Brian Kischnick 
 
Support Staff Present: 
Mitch Grusnick, Building Official/Code Inspector 
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
Also Present: 
Attached and made a part hereof is the signature sheet of those present and signed in 
at this meeting. 
 

2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
Moved by: Abitheira 
Support by: Anderson 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the minutes of the September 7, 2016 Regular meeting as 
submitted. 
 
Yes: All present (4) 
Absent: Kischnick 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
3. HEARING OF CASE 

 
A. VARIANCE REQUEST, CHRISTIAN E. TAZZIA FOR CONTROLLED POWER 

COMPANY, 1955 STEPHENSON – A variance to install a stairway chairlift resulting 
in a 33.75 inch stairway width and a handrail on only one side of the stairway. 
Section 1009.4 requires a 44 inch minimum width and Section 1009.15 requires 
handrails on both sides. - 2012 MICHIGAN BUILDING CODE 
 
Mr. Grusnick clarified for the record the required stairway width for a 50 or less 
occupancy load is 36 inches; therefore the variance request before the Board is for 
a 2.25 inch reduction in the width of the stairway. 
 
Present from Controlled Power Company were Christian Tazzia, President, and 
Jeffrey J. Stumpf, Controller. 

stewartc
Typewritten Text
P-01c



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT OCTOBER 5, 2016 
 
 

2 
 

There was discussion on: 
 Number of stairwells in building (3). 
 Chairlift to be installed on north stairwell. 

o Least used stairwell. 
o Exits to factory floor. 

 Emergency exit. 
o Center stairway. 

 
Chair Dziurman opened the floor for public comment. Acknowledging there was no 
one present to speak, the floor was closed. 
 
Moved by: Schuster 
Support by: Abitheira 
 
RESOLVED, To grant the variance as requested, for the following reason: 
 
1. The variance would not be contrary to the public interest or general purpose and 

intent of the Building Code. 
 
Yes: All present (4) 
Absent: Kischnick 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

4. COMMUNICATIONS – None. 
 
5. PUBLIC COMMENT – None. 
 
6. MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESS – None. 

 
7. ADJOURNMENT 

 
The Regular meeting of the Building Code Board of Appeals adjourned at 3:09 p.m. 

 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
  
Theodore Dziurman, Chair 
 
 
 
 
  
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
G:\Building Code Board of Appeals Minutes\2016\Draft\2016 10 05 Regular Meeting_Draft.doc 





 

 

1 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
Date:  October 12, 2016 
 
 
To:   Brian Kischnick, City Manager 
  
From:  Maggie Hughes, Management Analyst 

Mark Miller, Director of Economic and Community Development 
Paul Featherston, SAFEbuilt Building Official 
Mitch Grusnick, Building Official and Housing and Zoning Inspector 

    
 
Subject: Staff Response to Safety Concern 
 
 

Summary 
 
On October 11th the City Manager’s Office received the following email from Ms. Jonelle Bunch.  

 

“Dear Mr. Kishchnick 

 

I am writing you today because of concerns I have about a child fall hazard in Somerset 

Mall. Please see the photos I have provided below. These photos were taken at Somerset Mall 

on the South side 2nd floor. There is a sitting area after the walkway. In this sitting area, there 

are built in padded benches, behind the benches is a granite white step and then a railing. 

Beyond the railing is open to a drop down to the 1st floor. The distance from the step to the top 

of the railing is about a foot, making it easy for any child to climb on the benches, then the step 

and then proceed to fall over the rail to the 1st floor. Additionally, that ledge around the flower 

gardens could also be climbed on by a child and they could fall over the railing from there as 

well. Furthermore, from certain angles it is not completely visible that there is a deadly failing 

hazard with no floor behind the railing. From certain angles a person can only see the side walls 

and the plants below, leading someone to not realize there is an opening at all.  

I have been on the phone and emailing people. Unfortunately I have found no one who 

could help with this situation. On Tuesday October 4th, I spoke to a manager at Somerset Mall, 

John Mizack. He informed me that he could not baby proof the whole mall. I kindly told him 

that I was not asking him to baby proof the whole mall, however this is a seriously deadly 

falling hazard. An attitude of ‘we can’t fix everything, so we’re not going to fix anything’ is a 

disservice to all.  On October 7th, I spoke to Paul Featherson in the Troy City Hall building 

department and Charley Curtis at MiOSHA who both informed me that the design is "to code". 

When I asked what the code said Mr. Curtis told me that the railing had to be 42 inches from the 

floor. To which I said "Exactly, 42 inches FROM THE FLOOR! In this design the railing is 12 

inches from a white step." Clearly, this design has the railing placed 12 inches from the white 

stewartc
Typewritten Text
P-02a



 

 

2 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

step and ledge. Without a doubt, the code of 42 inches was made to ensure safety to the public, 

having the bench and the white step and ledges makes the design no longer in compliance with 

the purpose of  this code. If the codes are allowed to be used in such a way that builders, 

architects, and designers are permitted to veer away from safety, it defeats the purpose of the 

codes. It is morally and ethically wrong to say a dangerous design is “to code” and then turn a 

blind eye to an obvious safety hazard.  

This is why I am asking for your help. I believe that the original author of the code 

expected people to use safety, care, and above all common sense in their design. Really it is not 

about the codes, it’s about common sense. The codes should never supersede common sense. It 

is about sparing a family a lifetime of grief and regret over the death of a child. It's not a 

question of “if” it will happen. It's really just a question of “when”. The reactions I received 

from some of the individuals I spoke to are "well, parents should be watching their children." 

Yes, I completely agree, people should always be watching their children, however I do not 

think the parents who are momentarily distracted deserve a lifetime of grief and regret as a 

punishment. Even the best of parents have moments of distraction, moments when they are not 

as observant as they could be, and moments of poor judgment.  When people go to malls they 

expect the environment to be relatively safe. I fear for the children that get lost in Somerset 

Mall. I fear for the parent that goes to the mall with 2 or 3 children, and has an armful of bags, 

and does not expect a hazard like this to be in their path. I fear for the mother who is looking for 

a peaceful place to sit and does not expect a safety hazard to be in close proximity. Anyone who 

has children can tell you children jump and climb all over everything.  Children push, they fight, 

and they act rambunctiously. Children act without thinking, and children step without looking.  

Here are two possible suggestions to make this area safer. 

1.      Remove the benches, granite step, and side gardens so there is no way for a 

child to elevate themselves to go over the rail.  

2.      Close the hole in the floor all together and replace it with a garden, a statue, 

or some art.  

3.      Raise the height of the wall.  

It is my hope that something will be done to make this area safe for children and families. 

Children and families deserve to be able to go to a safe place. People deserve a 

government that is truly looking out for their safety and best interests.  

Thank you for your time. 

If there is anything I can do to help this process please let me know.” (photo below) 

 



 

 

3 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 

This letter was in addition to multiple phone calls over the course of one week to the City 

Manager’s Office, Clerk’s Office, Building Department (as well as The Michigan Occupational Safety 

and Health Administration - MIOSHA), and Police Department.  

 

Ms. Bunch’s perceived concern can be summarized as such: she believes that children are at risk 

of climbing from the seated area, onto the raised ledge, and over the rail falling from the second to the 

first floor. She believes that the building code must regulate that a structure that could be used to climb 

on, cannot be next to a railed area therefore the above photo represents a violation. 

 

Multiple conversations with the building officials have confirmed that the rail guard meets the 

building code and that the bench location near the rail guard is not regulated by code. Ms. Bunch has 

been made aware that there is no violation but elected to file a Freedom of Information Act to obtain 

the information for her own record. 

 

Taking a proactive approach to the matter, on October 11th Mitch Grusnick arranged an 

impromptu on-site meeting with Somerset staff including the building owner, general manager, and 

interior design manager. Mr. Grusnick agreed that there could be a potential safety hazard and asked to 

work with the Somerset team for a solution. Somerset, as a cooperative and willing partner, elected to 

design and install fixed metal planter boxes across the top of the marble slab between the bench and 

rail. This will provide a barrier between the seated area and the railing/opening to the first floor 

mediating the safety concern. As of October 12th, Somerset staff have placed temporary planters (see 



 

 

4 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

below) across the marble slab which will remain in place until the permanent planter are fabricated and 

available. 

 

I spoke to Ms. Bunch on the afternoon of October 11th to share our resolution. It is my 

impression that short of removing the bench or raising the height of the railing, Ms. Bunch will not be 

satisfied with our answer. Although she agreed to withhold her final judgement until the planter is 

installed, she already raised additional issue with the planter solution and asked for an expedited 

process that we cannot offer her. She replied via email on October 12th to the temporary planters stating 

that “this is a start. However, they need to deal with the gaps on the sides of the planters and between. 

Also the ledges on the side garden on this structure still need to be addressed.” I would reiterate that 

Ms. Bunch will not see compromise in any of our solutions. 

 

She has previously informed me that she may be contacting City Council or attending the 

October 24th meeting to bring forward this issue. She was not clear as to what action she would be 

looking for from you. Staff is more than satisfied with the solution Somerset agreed to. We feel that 

there is nothing more within our power to do and we believe we were patient and as cooperative as 

possible given the extremely persistent nature of her contact.  

 

If you have any additional questions please let us know. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
MH/Agenda Items/10.24.16 – Staff Response to Safety Concern 



stewartc
Typewritten Text
P-03a



stewartc
Typewritten Text
P-03b



1

Beth L Tashnick

Subject: FW: Again, thanks!
Attachments: Eagles vs TFD 10.6.2016.jpg

 
From: Bruce Benson  
Sent: Friday, October 07, 2016 12:03 PM 
To: David J Roberts <robertsdj@troymi.gov>; Cindy A Stewart <Cindy.Stewart@troymi.gov> 
Subject: Again, thanks! 

 
After all was said and done last night, I drive home 8 of our members to their apartments in Somerset Park. Their 
comments about the evening were incredible. To say they enjoyed themselves is a really an understatement. THANK 
YOU AGAIN for helping to make this happen! 
 
Although, we may have helped create somewhat of a monster because now they're talking about challenging TFD to a 
bowling competition!  
 
You helped put a lot of smiles on a lot of faces! Check out the attached file. I believe this is the first time she's crossed 
home plate to score a run! Before last season, she had never played softball. Priceless! 
 
Bruce 
 
 
--  
 
Bruce P. Benson, M.S.Ed. 
Executive Director 
On My Own of Michigan, Inc. 
1250 Kirts Blvd., Suite 300 
Troy, MI 48084-4855 
 
Office 248.649.3739 
Fax 248.688.9107 
Cell 313.498.1983 
Email bruce@onmyownofmi.org 
 
URL www.onmyownofmi.org 
 
A step towards independence for adults with mild developmental disabilities. 

stewartc
Typewritten Text
P-03c



1

Beth L Tashnick

From: Brian M Kischnick
Subject: FW: 10.11.16 Global Troy Advisory Committee Meeting Agenda
Attachments: 10.11.16 Global Troy Advisory Committee Meeting Agenda.pdf

From: Dane Slater  
Sent: Wednesday, October 12, 2016 4:15 PM 
To: Brian M Kischnick <B.Kischnick@troymi.gov> 
Subject: Fwd: 10.11.16 Global Troy Advisory Committee Meeting Agenda 
 

Brian, 
 
As you know, we held the first Global Troy Advisory Committee Meeting last night.  I want you to know that Eleanor 
was the star and she is totally responsible for forming this elite group of residents.  Without her hard work and 
dedication to this project, it would not have come together as this first class committee.  Every member of the 
committee is committed and Eleanor did a an outstanding job of vetting the applications and making my job very 
easy.   
 
I am proud to chair this committee, I see great potential and as usual, I get to reap the benefits of your outstanding 
staff.   I just can't say enough about the great job that Eleanor did to make this committee a success. 
 
Dane 
 
Dane M. Slater | Mayor  
 
City of Troy | 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, MI 48084 | www.troymi.gov | 
MayorSlater@troymi.gov | Mobile: 248.885.1935 | Office 248.524.3500 
 
“We believe a strong community embraces diversity, promotes innovation, and encourages collaboration. We strive to 
lead by example within the region. We do this because we want everyone to choose Troy as their community for life. 
We believe in doing government the best” 
 

stewartc
Typewritten Text
P-03d



stewartc
Typewritten Text
P-03e



 
From: Steven J Vandette  
Sent: Thursday, October 20, 2016 11:47 AM 
To: Brian M Kischnick <B.Kischnick@troymi.gov> 
Cc: Mark F Miller <Mark.Miller@troymi.gov>; Guy M Kitchen <Guy.Kitchen@troymi.gov>;  
Subject: FW: New Homes @ Long Lake & John R - Resident at 2238 Radcliffe...Complimenting Troy Staff Member... 
 
I am very pleased to forward on this email concerning our newest inspector, Guy Kitchen, and 
the positive feedback we received from a Troy resident.  He is only 3 months into his new 
inspector position in Engineering (from DPW, Streets Division) and I am very happy to hear he 
is representing the City and his department well.   
 
Steven Vandette, P.E. | City Engineer                                           
City of Troy |500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, MI 48084  | Office: 248.524.3383 |troymi.gov     
 
“We believe a strong community embraces diversity, promotes innovation, and encourages collaboration.  We 
strive to lead by example within the region. We do this because we want everyone to choose Troy as their 
community for life. We believe in doing government the best.” 
 
From: Mary MacKinnon [mailto:hockeyvet11@comcast.net]  
Sent: Wednesday, October 19, 2016 5:29 PM 
To: Steven J Vandette <VandetteSJ@troymi.gov> 
Cc: 'Mary MacKinnon' <hockeyvet11@comcast.net> 
Subject: New Homes @ Long Lake & John R - Resident at 2238 Radcliffe...Complimenting Troy Staff 
Member... 
 
Hello Sir, 
 
We are Troy residents. 
2238 Radcliffe Dr. 
Troy, MI  48085 
 
Please pass along our positive feedback. 
 
We (my wife & I) approached your Troy Staff Member (did not get his name – a larger fellow) today 
10/19/16 at approx. 4:30pm, and inquired about the new construction of homes going up off Square 
Lake  Road just east of John R. 
 
We want to compliment your staff member for his professionalism in discussing our (as a Troy resident) 
questions. 
He was in a Troy Pick-up Truck and had a “Civil Engineering” badge on. 
 
Your staff member pulled out the new prints and answered all our questions. 
My wife and I are impressed with your staff members’ abilities, attitude, and professionalism. 
 
Go Troy! 
Go team! 
 
Regards, 
Mark & Mary MacKinnon 
2238 Radcliffe Drive 
Troy, MI 
48085 
 

http://troymi.gov/
mailto:hockeyvet11@comcast.net
mailto:VandetteSJ@troymi.gov
mailto:hockeyvet11@comcast.net
https://www.facebook.com/TroyMI
https://twitter.com/CityTroyMI
stewartc
Typewritten Text
P-03f



stewartc
Typewritten Text
P-05




	October 24, 2016 Agenda
	Cover Memo
	Top 10 Strategies
	AGENDA: Return to 1st Page
	EXPLANATION BOOKLET: Return to 1st Page
	INVOCATION:  Pastor Weatherly Verhelst from First United Methodist Church
	PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:
	A. CALL TO ORDER:
	B. ROLL CALL:
	C. CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION AND SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS:
	C-1 Proclamation for America Recycles Day Presented to Pam Brady, South Oakland County Resource Recovery (Introduced by: Cindy Stewart, Community Affairs Director) (Presented by:  Mayor Dane Slater)
	C-2 Diwali Celebration Proclamation Presented to Padma Kuppa, Board Member of Michigan Chapter of the Hindu American Foundation and Members of the Bharatiya Temple (Presented by:  Mayor Dane Slater)
	C-3 Proclamation Honoring Cindy Stewart for Being Named One of the 2016 Esteemed Women of Michigan (Presented by:  Mayor Dane Slater)

	D. CARRYOVER ITEMS:
	D-1 No Carryover Items

	E. PUBLIC HEARINGS:
	E-1 Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment File No. ZOTA 249 – Enhanced Cluster Option

	F. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS ON THE AGENDA FROM TROY RESIDENTS AND BUSINESSES:
	G. CITY COUNCIL/CITY ADMINISTRATION RESPONSE/REPLY TO PUBLIC COMMENT:
	H. POSTPONED ITEMS:
	H-1 No Postponed Items

	I. REGULAR BUSINESS:
	I-1 Board and Committee Appointments: a) Mayoral Appointments – None; b) City Council Appointments – Animal Control Appeal Board, Parks and Recreation Board
	I-2 Board and Committee Nominations: a) Mayoral Nominations – Global Troy Advisory Committee, Local Development Finance Authority, Volunteer Firefighter Incentive Plan Board; b) City Council Nominations – Charter Revision Committee, Historic District ...
	I-3 No Closed Session Requested
	I-4 Big Beaver Trolley Proposal (Introduced by: Mayor Dane Slater) (Presented by: Robert Cramer, SMART)
	I-5 Standard Purchasing Resolution 8:  Best Value Award – Emergency Medical and First Responder Services (Introduced by:  Fire Chief Dave Roberts and Purchasing Manager MaryBeth Murz)

	J. CONSENT AGENDA:
	J-1a Approval of “J” Items NOT Removed for Discussion
	J-1b  Address of “J” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council
	J-2  Approval of City Council Minutes
	a) Special Joint City Council and Troy School Board Minutes-Draft – October 10, 2016
	b) City Council Minutes-Draft – October 10, 2016

	J-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations:
	a) America Recycles Day 2016
	b) Celebration of Diwali – The Festival of Lights – October 30, 2016
	c) Cindy Stewart – Esteemed Women of Michigan 2016 Honoree

	J-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions:
	a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2:  Low Bidders Meeting Specifications – Snow Removal Services

	J-5 Request for Recognition as a Nonprofit Organization from Myasthenia Gravis Association, Inc.
	J-6 Former I-75 – Rochester Mobil Gas Station, 2745 Rochester Road Proposal to Complete Analytical Testing and Final Assessment/Closure Report

	K. MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:
	K-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:  None Submitted
	K-2 Memorandums (Items submitted to City Council that may require consideration at  some future point in time):
	a) Amendment to City Ordinance Chapter 7 Item 9 “Declared Emergency”


	L. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA FROM TROY RESIDENTS AND BUSINESSES:
	M. CITY COUNCIL/CITY ADMINISTRATION RESPONSE/REPLY TO PUBLIC COMMENT:
	N. COUNCIL REFERRALS:
	N-1  No Council Referrals Submitted

	O. COUNCIL COMMENTS:
	O-1  No Council Comments Advanced

	P. REPORTS:
	P-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:
	a) Planning Commission-Draft – September 27, 2016
	b) Planning Commission-Final – September 27, 2016
	c) Building Code Board of Appeals-Draft – October 5, 2016

	P-2 Department Reports:
	a) Staff Response to Safety Concern

	P-3 Letters of Appreciation:
	a) To Chief Mayer from Wendy Dingwall Regarding Troy High Cross Country Team Morning Practice
	b) To Chief Mayer from Unknown Resident Regarding Officer Assistance
	c) To Chief Roberts from Bruce Benson Regarding Eagles vs Troy Fire Department Event
	d) To Brian Kischnick from Mayor Slater Regarding Eleanor Yoon’s Outstanding Work on the Global Troy Advisory Committee
	e) To Chief Roberts from Nancy Butty Regarding Participation in the Apparatus Display for the Fire and Life Safety Program
	f) To Steve Vandette from Mark and Mary MacKinnon Regarding the Excellent Service Received from Guy Kitchen

	P-4 Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:  None Submitted
	P-5 Notice of Hearing for the Natural Gas Customers of Consumers Energy Co. Case No. U-18166 – Saginaw Trail Pipeline

	Q. COMMENTS ON ITEMS ON OR NOT ON THE AGENDA FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC OUTSIDE OF TROY (NOT RESIDENTS OF TROY AND NOT FROM TROY BUSINESSES):
	R. CLOSED SESSION:
	R-1 No Closed Session

	S. ADJOURNMENT:
	October 25, 2016 Joint Study City Council/Troy Downtown Development Authority
	November 14, 2016 Joint Study City Council/Troy Family Daze Committee
	November 14, 2016 Regular Meeting
	November 21, 2016 Regular Meeting
	December 5, 2016 Regular Meeting
	December 19, 2016 Regular Meeting
	Attachments.pdf
	20161024 Agenda - C-01  Proclamation for America Recycles Day Presented to Pam Brady
	20161024 Agenda - C-02  Proclamation to Recognize Celebration of Diwali - Festival of Lights - October 30, 2016
	20161024 Agenda - C-03  Proclamation in Recognition of City Stewart, Esteemed Women of Michigan 2016 Honoree
	20161024 Agenda - E-01  Public Hearing - ZOTA File Number ZOTA 249 - Enhanced Cluster Option
	ADP3123.tmp
	AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND

	ADP6096.tmp
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Direction Received
	Eliminate Unnecessary Provisions 
	Design Flexibility
	Base Density 
	Density Bonus 
	Density Bonus 
	Open Space 
	Housing Diversity and Options
	Sustainable Design 
	Two-Family Dwellings 
	Process
	Summary
	Slide Number 18


	20161024 Agenda - I-04  Big Beaver Trolley Proposal
	20161024 Agenda - I-05  SPR8 Best Value Award - Emergency Medical and First Responder Services
	RFP-COT 16-33 EMS Services_BidTab.pdf
	BidTab


	20161024 Agenda - J-02a  Joint Special City Council-Troy School Board Minutes-Draft - October 10, 2106
	A. CALL TO ORDER:
	B. ROLL CALL:
	C. DISCUSSION ITEMS:
	C-1 Welcome and Introductions
	C-2 District’s Mission/Vision/Values/Goals
	C-3 Property Sale
	C-4 Bond Projects
	C-5 Other

	D. PUBLIC COMMENT:
	E. ADJOURNMENT:
	PUBLIC COMMENT:
	2016 SCHEDULED SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS:
	October 24, 2016 Joint Meeting–Troy City Council/Troy Planning Commission

	2016 SCHEDULED REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS:
	October 24, 2016 Regular Meeting
	November 14, 2016 Regular Meeting
	November 21, 2016 Regular Meeting
	December 5, 2016 Regular Meeting
	December 19, 2016 Regular Meeting


	20161024 Agenda - J-02b  City Council Minutes-Draft - October 10, 2016
	A. CALL TO ORDER:
	B. ROLL CALL:
	C. CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION AND SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS:
	C-1 Larysa Figol, Senior Right-of-Way Representative has been Named “2016 Professional of the Year” by the International Right-of-Way Association (IRWA) Michigan Chapter 7 (Presented by:  Mayor Dane Slater)
	C-2 Proclamation to Celebrate Sandra J. Burgess and Burgess Strategic Marketing Services - 30 Years in Business in the City of Troy (Presented by:  Mayor Dane Slater)

	D. CARRYOVER ITEMS:
	D-1 No Carryover Items

	E. PUBLIC HEARINGS:
	E-1 No Public Hearings

	F. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS ON THE AGENDA FROM TROY RESIDENTS AND BUSINESSES:
	G. CITY COUNCIL/CITY ADMINISTRATION RESPONSE/REPLY TO PUBLIC COMMENT:
	H. POSTPONED ITEMS:
	H-1 No Postponed Items

	I. REGULAR BUSINESS:
	I-1 Board and Committee Appointments: a) Mayoral Appointments – Downtown Development Authority; b) City Council Appointments – Zoning Board of Appeals
	I-2 Board and Committee Nominations: a) Mayoral Nominations – None; b) City Council Nominations – Animal Control Appeal Board, Parks & Recreation Board
	I-3 No Closed Session Requested
	I-4 Budget Amendment and Bid Waiver – Police Department Perimeter Fencing (Introduced by:  Chief Gary Mayer)

	J. CONSENT AGENDA:
	J-1a Approval of “J” Items NOT Removed for Discussion
	J-1b  Address of “J” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council
	J-2  Approval of City Council Minutes
	a) City Council Minutes-Draft – September 26, 2016

	J-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations:
	a) Burgess Strategic Marketing Services – 30 Years in Business in the City of Troy

	J-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions:
	a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2:  Low Bidder Meeting Specifications – 2016 Street Planting
	b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4:  Cooperative Contract Award – Michigan Intergovernmental Trade Network (MITN) – Flexible Chain Cutters

	J-5 Suggested Resolution to Schedule a Study Meeting with the Troy Family Daze Committee on Monday, November 14, 2016 at 6:00 PM for the Purpose of Discussing Troy Family Daze
	J-6 Suggested Resolution to Schedule a Joint Study Meeting with the Troy Downtown Development Authority on Tuesday, October 25, 2016, at 5:00 PM for the Purpose of Discussing Quality Development Initiative (QDI), Redevelopment Proposal of 888 W. Big B...
	J-7 Traffic Committee Recommendations and Minutes – September 21, 2016
	J-8 2017 Annual Permit for Work on State Trunkline Right-of-Way
	J-9 Police Department Promotional Testing Services
	J-10 Request for Acceptance of a Permanent Easement from HMB Development Inc. – Sidwell #88-20-27-429-042
	J-11 Request for Acceptance of a Permanent Easement from Bethesda Romanian Pentecostal Church – Forest Run Site Condo – Sidwell #88-20-12-351-037
	J-12 Request for Acceptance of a Warranty Deed and Two Permanent Easements from GFA Harmony Developers LLC – West Oak III Site Condo – Sidwell #88-20-23-401-018 and 019

	K. MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:
	K-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:
	a) October 24, 2016 – Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment File No ZOTA 249 – Enhanced Cluster Option

	K-2 Memorandums (Items submitted to City Council that may require consideration at  some future point in time):  None Submitted

	L. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA FROM TROY RESIDENTS AND BUSINESSES:
	M. CITY COUNCIL/CITY ADMINISTRATION RESPONSE/REPLY TO PUBLIC COMMENT:
	N. COUNCIL REFERRALS:
	N-1  No Council Referrals Submitted

	O. COUNCIL COMMENTS:
	O-1  Council Comments

	P. REPORTS:
	P-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:
	a) Election Commission-Final – June 23, 2016
	b) Building Code Board of Appeals-Final – September 7, 2016
	c) Planning Commission-Final – September 13, 2016
	d) Election Commission-Draft – September 29, 2016

	P-2 Department Reports:
	a) Building Department Activity Report – September, 2016
	b) September, 2016 Memo on Reference Information for Liquor License Types
	c) Letter of Engagement from Rehman for the City of Troy for the Year Ended June 30, 2016
	d) 2016 Third Quarter Litigation Report

	P-3 Letters of Appreciation:
	a) To Troy Fire Department from Mary Miller Nichols
	b) To Chief Mayer from Jean Backlund Regarding Assistance by Troy Officers at an Accident
	c) To Troy Police Department from MaryFrances Bertolino Regarding Coffee with a Cop
	d) To Chief Mayer from the Tocco Family Regarding Officer Assistance for a Situation with their Family
	e) To Chief Mayer from Richard Torongeau, Beverly Hills Director of Public Safety, Regarding Troy Police Officers Assistance with a Case
	f) To Troy Police Department from Henrean Prater Regarding Officer Assistance

	P-4 Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:  None Submitted

	Q. COMMENTS ON ITEMS ON OR NOT ON THE AGENDA FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC OUTSIDE OF TROY (NOT RESIDENTS OF TROY AND NOT FROM TROY BUSINESSES):
	R. CLOSED SESSION:
	R-1 No Closed Session

	S. ADJOURNMENT:

	20161024 Agenda - J-04a SPR2  Low Bidders Meeting Specifications – Snow Removal Services
	ITB-COT 16-30 Snow Removal .pdf
	Snow Removal-1
	Snow Removal-2


	20161024 Agenda - J-05  Request for Recognition as a Nonprofit Organization from Myasthenia Gravis Association Inc
	Gaming License Request-20161024 Agenda -  Myasthenia Gravis Association, Inc
	20161024 - Gaming License Request - n

	20161024 Agenda - J-06  Former I-75-Rochester Mobil Gas Station, 2745 Rochester Road - Proposal to Complete Analytical Testing and Final Assessment-Closure Report
	20161024 Agenda - K-02a  Amendment to Chapter 7 Item 9 - Declared Emergency
	20161024 Agenda - P-01a  Planning Commission-Draft - September 27, 2016
	20161024 Agenda - P-01b  Planning Commission-Final - September 27, 2016
	20161024 Agenda - P-01c  Building Code Board of Appeals-Draft - October 5, 2016
	20161024 Agenda - P-02a  Staff Responses to Safety Concern
	20161024 Agenda - P-03a  LoA to Chief Mayer from Wendy Dingwall Regarding Troy High Cross Country Team Morning Practice
	20161024 Agenda - P-03b  LoA to Chief Mayer from Unknown Resident Regarding Officer Assistance
	20161024 Agenda - P-03c  LoA to Chief Roberts from Bruce Benson Regarding Eagles vs Troy Fire Department Event
	20161024 Agenda - P-03d  LoA to Brian Kischnick from Mayor Slater Regarding Eleanor Yoon's Outstanding Work on the Global Troy Advisory Committee
	20161024 Agenda - P-03e  LoA to Chief Roberts from Nancy Butty Regarding Participation in the Apparatus Display for the Fire and Life Safety Program
	20161024 Agenda - P-03f  LoA to Steve Vandette from Mark and Mary MacKinnon Regarding the Excellent Service Received from Guy Kitchen
	From: Mary MacKinnon [30Tmailto:hockeyvet11@comcast.net30T]  Sent: Wednesday, October 19, 2016 5:29 PM To: Steven J Vandette <30TVandetteSJ@troymi.gov30T> Cc: 'Mary MacKinnon' <30Thockeyvet11@comcast.net30T> Subject: New Homes @ Long Lake & John R - R...

	20161024 Agenda - P-05  Notice of Hearing for the Natural Gas Customers of Consumers Energy Company Case No. U-18166




